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 &KHFNZKHWKHUWKHLVVXHU

D  KDV ILOHG DOO UHSRUWV UHTXLUHG WR EH ILOHG E\ 6HFWLRQ  RI WKH 65& DQG 65& 5XOH  WKHUH
XQGHURU6HFWLRQRIWKH56$DQG56$5XOH D WKHUHXQGHUDQG6HFWLRQVDQGRI
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ&RGHRIWKH3KLOLSSLQHVGXULQJWKHSUHFHGLQJWZHOYH  PRQWKV RUIRUVXFK
VKRUWHUSHULRGWKDWWKHUHJLVWUDQWZDVUHTXLUHGWRILOHVXFKUHSRUWV 

<HV>3
3@
1R>@


E  KDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRVXFKILOLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVIRUWKHSDVWQLQHW\  GD\V


<HV>@
1R>3
3@

 6WDWHWKHDJJUHJDWHPDUNHWYDOXHRIWKHYRWLQJVWRFNKHOGE\QRQDIILOLDWHVRIWKHUHJLVWUDQW

7KH DJJUHJDWH PDUNHW YDOXH RI WKH YRWLQJ VWRFN KHOG E\ QRQDIILOLDWHV FRQVLVWLQJ RI
 VKDUHV DV RI 0DUFK   LV 3 EDVHG RQ WKH ODVW NQRZQ
WUDQVDFWLRQSULFHLQDWWKHH[FKDQJHRI3SHUVKDUH

 &KHFNZKHWKHUWKHLVVXHUKDVILOHGDOOGRFXPHQWVDQGUHSRUWVUHTXLUHGWREHILOHGE\6HFWLRQRI
WKH &RGH VXEVHTXHQW WR WKH GLVWULEXWLRQ RI VHFXULWLHV XQGHU D SODQ FRQILUPHG E\ D FRXUW RU WKH
&RPPLVVLRQ
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3$57,²%86,1(66$1'*(1(5$/,1)250$7,21


$ %86,1(66

 %XVLQHVV'HYHORSPHQW

2YHUWKH\HDUVUDGLRKDVVWRRGLWVJURXQGWRSURYHWKDWLWLVWKHPRVWSRZHUIXOPHGLXP
RIFRPPXQLFDWLRQ*LYHQWKHDUFKLSHODJLFQDWXUHRIWKH3KLOLSSLQH,VODQGVUDGLRFRQWLQXHV
WR EH DQ LQGLVSHQVDEOH PHGLXP IRU LQIRUPDWLRQ HQWHUWDLQPHQW DQG DGYHUWLVLQJ ZK\ QRW
ZKHQLWKDVWKHDIIRUGDELOLW\SRUWDELOLW\DQGPRELOLW\ZKLFKRWKHUPHGLDGRQRWKDYH7R
EHJLQZLWKDOPRVWDOO3KLOLSSLQHKRXVHKROGVRZQDWOHDVWRQHUDGLRVHW5DGLRVDUHHDVLO\
WUDQVIHUUHGIURPRQHVHFWLRQRIWKHKRXVHWRDQRWKHU,WWUDYHOVZLWKLWVOLVWHQHUVEHWKH\LQ
WKHLUSULYDWHFDUVRULQMHHSQH\VWD[LVDQG);

$ IHZ \HDUV EDFN KRZHYHU WKH QHZ PLOOHQQLXP XVKHUHG LQ DQ XQFKDUWHUHG HUD IRU WKH
PHGLD LQGXVWU\ DQG 0DQLOD %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 0%& RU WKH &RPSDQ\  KDV WDNHQ
EROGPRYHVWRDGGUHVVWKHFKDQJLQJQHHGVRIWKHFKDQJLQJWLPHV

7RGD\ 0%& KDV JRQH EH\RQG LWV XVXDO UROH DV D PHGLXP DQG KDV D PHVVDJH LWVHOI LQ
WHUPVRIWKHIROORZLQJ

D  (YHQWV

0%& KDV H[SDQGHG LWV RSHUDWLRQV WR HPEUDFH ERWK EURDGFDVWLQJ DQG RUJDQL]LQJ
VSHFLDOHYHQWV2XUFXUUHQWEXVLQHVVPRGHOSURYLGHVDGYHUWLVHUVZLWKDFRPELQDWLRQRI
EHQHILWV ² WKH WUDGLWLRQDO DSSHDO RI RXU $0 DQG )0QHWZRUNV SOXV WKH KLJKLPSDFW
H[SRVXUHJHQHUDWHGE\VSHFLDOHYHQWV

$OLZDQ)LHVWD
WK
2QH RI WKH PRVW VXFFHVVIXO HYHQWV $OLZDQ )LHVWD KDV FHOHEUDWHG LWV   \HDU
DQQLYHUVDU\ ODVW $SULO  ,W VWDUWHG LQ  ZKHQ 0%& LQ FROODERUDWLRQ ZLWK
6WDU &LW\ DQG $OLZ 7KHDWHU YHQWXUHG WR EULQJ WRJHWKHU LQ 0DQLOD WKH DZDUG
ZLQQLQJSHUIRUPHUVDQGSHUIRUPDQFHVIURPWKHPRVWSRSXODUIHVWLYDOVDOORYHUWKH
3KLOLSSLQHV $V GDXQWLQJ DV WKLV WDVN PD\ KDYH VHHPHG DW ILUVW ´$OLZDQ )LHVWDµ
WXUQHG RXW WR EH D VWHUOLQJ VXFFHVV GUDZLQJ WHQV RI WKRXVDQGV WR WKH VWUHHWV
PDNLQJLWWKH3KLOLSSLQHV·JUDQGHVWILHVWD

3DVNRQJ3LQR\
3DVNRQJ 3LQR\ VWDUWHG LQ  KLJKOLJKWHG E\ +LPLJ QJ 3DVNR &KLOGUHQ·V &KRLU
FRPSHWLWLRQ DQG ,ODZ QJ 3DVNR D SDURO PDNLQJ FRPSHWLWLRQ 7KH HYHQW·V LQVWDQW
VXFFHVVOHGWRDELJJHU3DVNRQJ3LQR\LQDGGLQJDQRSHQFDWHJRU\WR+LPLJ
QJ 3DVNR IRU DFDGHPLF LQVWLWXWLRQV FKXUFKHV VSHFLDO LQWHUHVW JURXSV DV ZHOO DV
FRPSDQLHVRUDJHQFLHVLQWKHSXEOLFDQGSULYDWHVHFWRUV,Q0%&KDVDJDLQ
H[SDQGHGLWVVFRSHE\WXUQLQJWKHHYHQWLQWRDQDWLRQZLGHFRPSHWLWLRQZKLFKZDV
SDUWLFLSDWHGE\WKHEHVWFKRUDOFRQGXFWRUVDQGDUUDQJHUVLQWKHFRXQWU\

)ROORZLQJ WKH WUDGLWLRQ RI 0%&·V DQQXDO QDWLRQDO FKRUDO FRPSHWLWLRQ ODVW
'HFHPEHU  WKH HYHQW ZHQW LQWHUQDWLRQDO IRU WKH ILUVW WLPH DV ,QWHUNXOWXU LQ
FROODERUDWLRQ ZLWK 0%& DQG WKH 3KLOLSSLQH &KRUDO 'LUHFWRUV $VVRFLDWLRQ 3&'$ 
SURXGO\ SUHVHQWHG WKH 6LQJ 1· -R\ 0DQLOD  WKH 3KLOLSSLQH ,QWHUQDWLRQDO

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

&KRUDO&RPSHWLWLRQ7KLVYHU\VXFFHVVIXOHYHQWZDVMRLQHGE\FKRLUVIURPYDULRXV
FRXQWULHVDFURVV$VLD

6HD6SRUWV)HVWLYDO
0%& DQG WKH &LW\ RI 0DQLOD LQ FRRSHUDWLRQ ZLWK WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV &RDVW *XDUG
ODXQFKHG LQ  RI ZKDW ZDV WKHQ FDOOHG %DQNDWKRQ )HVWLYDO &RPSULVLQJ D
0RWRUL]HG EDQFD FRPSHWLWLRQ DQG 'UDJRQ ERDW UDFH QRZ FDOOHG WKH 6HD 6SRUWV
)HVWLYDOFRQYHUJHDWWKH%D\ZDON5R[DV%RXOHYDUGHYHU\0DUFK

0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQ
'ULYHQ E\ LWV GHVLUH WR IXOILOO LWV FRPPLWPHQW LQ JLYLQJ EDFN WR WKH HQYLURQPHQW
0%&ODXQFKHGLWVIXQGUDLVLQJSURMHFWWKDWZLOOEHQHILWWKH0DQLOD%D\WKH0DQLOD
%D\ &OHDQXS 5XQ ZKLFK VWDUWHG LQ  ,W·V D IULHQGO\ UDFH WKDW DLPV WR UDLVH
IXQGVWKDWZLOOKHOSUHVWRUHDQGPDLQWDLQWKHEHDXW\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\DVZHOODV
WRSURPRWHDZDUHQHVVDPRQJ)LOLSLQRVWKHEHQHILWVRIH[HUFLVHLQNHHSLQJRQHVHOI
ILWDQGKHDOWK\





'XULQJ WKHVH UHFHQW \HDUV 0%& KDV DOVR JRQH LQWR SURGXFLQJ DQG VSRQVRULQJ
FRQFHUWVIHDWXULQJWRSORFDODUWLVWV2QVSHFLDORFFDVLRQVWKH &RPSDQ\·V)0VWDWLRQV
ZRXOG PRXQW PRYLH SUHPLHUV ZKLOH JLYLQJ DZD\ WLFNHWV WR OR\DO OLVWHQHUV 7KH
FRPSDQ\ DOVR KDV WLH XSV ZLWK PRYLH DQG UHFRUGLQJ RXWILWV IRU SURPR WRXUV OLYH
SHUIRUPDQFHV DQG IDQV· GD\V LQ PDOOV 7KLV ZD\ 0%& FDQ UHDFK LWV FXVWRPHUV LQ
VHYHUDOZD\VRQDLUZKHQRXUFXVWRPHUVOLVWHQWRUDGLRVWDWLRQVRQWKHVWUHHWVZKHUH
WKHUHDUHVWUHDPHUVDQGSRVWHUVRIWKHHYHQWVDQGLQWKHQHZVSDSHUVDQG79ZKHQ
PHGLDFRYHUWKHVHHYHQWV


4E  %UDQGLQJ

)RU /RYH 5DGLR LW LV ´.DLODQJDQ SD EDQJ LPPHPRUL]H ¶\DQ"µ IRU <HV)0 LW LV
´+D\DKD\µIRU(DV\5RFNLWLV´-XVWWKH5LWH5RFNµDQGIRU'=5+LWLV´5+$JDGµ

,QGHHG WKHVH WDJOLQHV LQYRNH D SHUVRQDOLW\ D FKDUDFWHU WKDW IRUPV D SHUVRQDO DQG
HPRWLRQDOERQGZLWKOLVWHQHUVVRPXFKVRWKDWOR\DOW\LVIRUPHG DQGLVYHU\KDUGWR
EUHDN

F  &UHDWLYH&RQWHQW

$ IDU FU\ IURP WKH WUDGLWLRQDO SURGXFHG DGV WKHUH LV PXFK QRZ VXFK D WKLQJ DV
´FUHDWLYHFRQWHQWµ7KLVLV ZKHQDGYHUWLVLQJ PHVVDJHVDUHQRZFDVXDOO\ HPEHGGHGLQ
DQQRXQFHUV·DQG'-V·DGOLEVDQGLQVRDSRSHUDVFULSWV7KLVUHQGHUVWKHPHVVDJHPRUH
FUHGLEOHPRUHIXQWROLVWHQWRDQGLQVRPDQ\ZD\VWKDQRQHPRUHHIIHFWLYH




G  3URPRWLRQV

5DGLR SURPRV PD\ EH KHOG DV ROG DV WLPH EXW WKH\ DUH JLYHQ QHZ WZLVWV QRZDGD\V
0RVW DUH WDLORUPDGH DFFRUGLQJ WR WKH VSHFLILFDWLRQV DQG QHHGV RI D SDUWLFXODU
DGYHUWLVHU 7KHVH SURPRV JLYH DGYHUWLVHUV ERWK WKHWUDGLWLRQDO UHDFK RI $0 DQG )0
VWDWLRQVDQGWKHKLJKLPSDFWH[SRVXUHJHQHUDWHGE\VSHFLDOHYHQWVDQGSURPRWLRQV



6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

4H  ,PSURYHG5HVHDUFK

0DMRU DJHQFLHV DQG DGYHUWLVHUV QRZ DUH SURYLGHG ZLWK WKH ODWHVW DQG PRVW UHOLDEOH
GDWD WR KHOS WKHP EX\ LQWR UDGLR 7KH .DSLVDQDQ QJPJD %URDGNDVWHUV QJ 3LOLSLQDV
.%3  RI ZKLFK 0%& LV DQ DFWLYH PHPEHU EULGJHV WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ JDS EHWZHHQ
DGYHUWLVHUVDQGUDGLRZLWKWKH0DUNHW5HDGHUVDQG$&1LHOVHQVWXGLHV

:LWK WKH $VVRFLDWLRQ RI $FFUHGLWHG $GYHUWLVLQJ $JHQFLHV $·V  DQG 3KLOLSSLQH
$VVRFLDWLRQ RI 1DWLRQDO $GYHUWLVHUV 3$1$  .%3 KDV DOVR UHDFWLYDWHG WKH 5DGLR
5HVHDUFK&RXQFLO 55& DVWKHRIILFLDOUDGLRUHVHDUFKDUP:LWKWKLVWKHUDGLRLQGXVWU\
FDQQRZEHPHDVXUHGZLWKDVLQJOHXQLIRUP\DUGVWLFN

I  *OREDOL]DWLRQ

7KURXJK WKH LQWHUQHW UDGLR VWUHDPLQJ )LOLSLQRV DOO RYHU WKH ZRUOG DUH QRZ DEOH WR
OLVWHQWR0%&·VUDGLRVWDWLRQVUHDOWLPHWKXVDGGLQJDGGLWLRQDOYHQXHIRUSURGXFWVDQG
VHUYLFHV WKDW QHHG WR UHDFK )LOLSLQRV DQG WKHLU IDPLOLHV ZRUOGZLGH ,W LV D FDVH RI D
ZRUOGWKDWKDVJRQHVPDOOHUDQGZHKDYHUDGLRODUJHO\WRWKDQNIRU

/RRNLQJ EDFN DQG PRYLQJ IRUZDUG QRQH RI WKHVH YHQWXUHV ZRXOG EH D VXFFHVV
ZLWKRXWWKHLQYDOXDEOHVXSSRUWRIRXUSDUWQHUVRXUDGYHUWLVHUV0XFKLQWKHVDPHZD\
WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\·V EXVLQHVV PRGHO LV HYROYLQJ WLPHWHVWHG UHODWLRQVKLSV ZLWK
DGYHUWLVHUV DUH DOVR FKDQJLQJ¬ JURZLQJ VWURQJHU DQG WUDQVFHQGLQJ WKH FRQYHQWLRQDO
ERXQGDULHVRIUDGLR



J  $FTXLVLWLRQRI6WDWLRQ':5. QRZ(DV\5RFN 

0DQLOD%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\PDUNHGDQRWKHUPLOHVWRQHLQWKHKLVWRU\RI3KLOLSSLQH
UDGLR WKURXJK LWV DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. LQ 2FWREHU  XQGHU D 0HPRUDQGXP RI
$JUHHPHQW ZLWK $&:68QLWHG %URDGFDVWLQJ 1HWZRUN ,QF DQG ([RGXV %URDGFDVWLQJ
&RPSDQ\

&XUUHQWO\ WKH WRSUDWLQJ QLFKH VWDWLRQ LQ 0HWUR 0DQLOD ':5.·V HQWU\ LQWR WKH 0%&
IDPLO\³DOUHDG\ WKH KRPH RI WKH WZR KLJKHVWUDWLQJ VWDWLRQV RQ WKH )0 EDQG³LV
YLHZHG DV DQ HYHQ ELJJHU ERRVW WR WKH QHWZRUN·V RYHUDOO DXGLHQFH VKDUH ZLWK
DJJUHJDWH DGYHUWLVLQJ UHYHQXHV VHW WR SURSHO WR HYHQ KLJKHU OHYHOV $UPHG ZLWK WKH
VDPH EXVLQHVV IRUHVLJKW WKDW KDV VHHQ LW WKURXJK VHYHQ GHFDGHV DV D PHGLD
FRQJORPHUDWH WR UHFNRQ ZLWK 0%& QRZ VHWV RXW WR FDUYH LWV QLFKH DPRQJ \RXWKIXO
$%OLVWHQHUVZKRIDYRUOLJKWURFNPXVLF':5.QRZSRSXODUO\NQRZQDV(DV\ 5RFN
SUHVHQWV WKH FUHDP RI DGXOW FRQWHPSRUDU\ PXVLF IURP WKH V V V V DQG
V


K  5+79

$V SDUW RI 0%&·V LQWHJUDWHG PHGLD DSSURDFK VHHLQJ KRZ UDGLR KDV JRQH
PXOWLSODWIRUPLQHIIRUWVWRUHVSRQGWRWKH)LOLSLQRGLDVSRUDSKHQRPHQRQDQGWKHUHE\
H[SDQGLQJERWKOLVWHQHUVKLSDQGYLHZHUVKLSWKHORQJHVWUXQQLQJ$0UDGLRVWDWLRQLQ
WKHFRXQWU\LVQRZRQWHOHYLVLRQ

'=5+ WKH IODJVKLS VWDWLRQ RI 0%& DQG FRQVLGHUHG WKH VWDQGDUGEHDUHU RI
EURDGFDVWLQJ H[FHOOHQFH LQ WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV VWDUWHG LWV KRXU EURDGFDVW RQ

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU



2FWREHU   RYHU 'UHDP &KDQQHO   DQG &DEOH OLQN &KDQQHO   7KURXJK WKH
DJUHHPHQWVLJQHGZLWKYDULRXVPHPEHUVRIWKH)HGHUDWLRQRI,QWHUQDWLRQDO&DEOH79
$VVRFLDWLRQ RI WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV RSHUDWLQJ WKURXJKRXW WKH FRXQWU\ 5+79 LV QRZ
DFFHVVLEOHWRDQDWLRQZLGHDXGLHQFH


 %XVLQHVV,VVXHU

0%&LVHQJDJHGLQWKHUDGLREURDGFDVWLQJEXVLQHVV,WVEDQQHUVWDWLRQLV'=5+WKHRQO\
QDWLRQZLGH YLD VDWHOOLWH $0 VWDWLRQ LQ WKH FRXQWU\/RYH 5DGLR<(6 )0 DQG(DV\ 5RFN
DUH WKH WKUHH WRSUDWHG )0 QHWZRUNV EHLQJ RSHUDWHGE\ WKH &RPSDQ\ 7KHVH VWDWLRQV
XWLOL]HDQDGXOWFRQWHPSRUDU\PXVLFIRUPDWZKLFKFRPELQHVQHZFKDUWWRSSLQJKLWVZLWK
IDPLOLDU VRQJV WKDW DUH DFNQRZOHGJHG DV WLPHOHVV IDYRULWHV LQ RUGHU WR DWWUDFW OLVWHQHUV
IURPYLUWXDOO\HYHU\DJHJURXSDQGHFRQRPLFEDFNJURXQG2QWKHRWKHUKDQG+RW)0LV
WKH &RPSDQ\·V SURYLQFLDO SRS IRUPDW VWDWLRQ ,W FRPPDQGV D VROLG IROORZLQJ DPRQJ WKH
\RXWKPDUNHW$NV\RQ5DG\RLV0%&·VQHWZRUNFRPSRVHGRISURYLQFLDO$0VWDWLRQV7KH
FRPSDQ\DOVRRSHUDWHV5DG\R1DWLQWKHODUJHVWQHWZRUNRIFRPPXQLW\UDGLRVWDWLRQVLQ
WKHFRXQWU\ZLWKRYHUVPDOO)0VWDWLRQVWKURXJKRXWWKHDUFKLSHODJR

0%&HQJDJHVWKHVHUYLFHV RIYDULRXVORFDODQGIRUHLJQVXSSOLHUVLQWKH PDLQWHQDQFHDQG
XSJUDGH RI LWV H[LVWLQJ VWDWLRQV DQG IRU LWV QHZ VWDWLRQV ,WV UHJXODU VXSSOLHUV LQFOXGH
(QHUJ\ 2QL[ %URDGFDVW (TXLSPHQW %URDGFDVW :RUOG 3KLOV 6\VWHP ,QF %URDGFDVW
(OHFWURQLFV ,QF %LQDULDQJ 6DWHOOLWH RI 0DOD\VLD 6KDQJKDL 7HQJ 'D %URDGFDVWLQJ
(TXLSPHQW&R/WG$UUD\6ROXWLRQ% ))RWR(OHFWURQLFV 6SLQ(OHFWURQLFV

0%&LVWKHODUJHVWUDGLRQHWZRUNLQWKHFRXQWU\,WVSULQFLSDOFRPSHWLWRUVLQFOXGH%RPER
5DG\R5DGLR0LQGDQDR1HWZRUN*0$1%&WKH9HUD*URXSDQG$%6&%10%&DQGLWV
FRPSHWLWRUVDUHDOOHQJDJHGLQWKHVDOHRIUDGLRDLUWLPHIRUDGYHUWLVLQJ

0%& ERDVWV RI WRSUDWHG VWDWLRQV LQ DOPRVW DOO DUHDV RI WKH FRXQWU\ EHFDXVH RI LWV JRRG
SURJUDP IRUPDW WDOHQWHG EURDGFDVWHUV DQG VWDWHRIWKHDUW HTXLSPHQW 0%& JHQHUDWHV
VDOHV WKURXJK DGYHUWLVLQJ WKDW DFFRXQWV IRU PRUH WKDQ  RI WKH FRUSRUDWH UHYHQXH ,W
KDVDUHJXODUWHDPRIVDOHVH[HFXWLYHVKDQGOLQJGLUHFWSODFHPHQWVIURPDGYHUWLVHUVDQGRU
FRRUGLQDWHV ZLWK DGYHUWLVLQJ DJHQFLHV ZLWK UHJDUG WR WKHLU DGYHUWLVHPHQW SODFHPHQWV IRU
WKHLUUHVSHFWLYHFOLHQWV

,Q YLHZ RI LWV OHDGHUVKLS LQ VL]H 0%& LV FDSDEOH RI RIIHULQJ WR FOLHQWV DQ HIIHFWLYH
DGYHUWLVLQJSDFNDJHDWDORZHUFRVW%LJQHWZRUNVVXFKDV0%&FDQEHH[SHFWHGWREULQJ
LQ PRUH DGYHUWLVLQJ UHYHQXHV EHFDXVH LW FDQ PDUNHW LWV VWDWLRQV PRUH HIIHFWLYHO\ %\
SDFNDJLQJ WKH VWDWLRQV 0%& FDQ OXPS VWDWLRQV ZLWKORZ OLVWHQHUVKLS OHYHO LQ VRPH DUHDV
ZLWKVWDWLRQVRIKLJKOLVWHQHUVKLSLQRWKHUDUHDV

7KH &RPSDQ\ QRZ KDV VHYHQ   SURJUDPPLQJ IRUPDWV QDPHO\ '=5+ $NV\RQ 5DG\R
/RYH5DGLR<HV)0(DV\5RFN+RW)0DQG5DG\R1DWLQZKLFKUHSUHVHQWDERXW
    DQG  UHVSHFWLYHO\ RI WKH WRWDO EURDGFDVWLQJ IHHV LQ  7KH
&RPSDQ\ RSHUDWHV QDWLRQZLGH ZLWK RQH $0 DQG WKUHH )0 VWDWLRQV LQ 0HWUR 0DQLOD DQG
$NV\RQ5DG\R/RYH5DGLR<HV)0+RW)0(DV\5RFNDQGRYHUDKXQGUHG
5DG\R1DWLQVWDWLRQVLQWKHSURYLQFHV



6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

4.5 7UDQVDFWLRQVZLWKDQGRUGHSHQGHQFHRQUHODWHGSDUWLHV

3OHDVHUHIHUWR1RWHRIWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

E  3DWHQWVWUDGHPDUNVOLFHQVHVIUDQFKLVHVFRQFHVVLRQVUR\DOW\

0%& LV D JUDQWHH RI D FRQJUHVVLRQDO IUDQFKLVH WR RSHUDWH DQG RZQ UDGLR DQG 79
VWDWLRQV LQ WKH FRXQWU\ IRU D SHULRG RI  \HDUV WKDW ZDV JUDQWHG LQ  )RU LWV
RSHUDWLRQV 0%& LV UHTXLUHG WR VHFXUH IURP WKH 1DWLRQDO 7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQV
&RPPLVVLRQ 17& DSSURSULDWHSHUPLWVDQGOLFHQVHVIRULWVVWDWLRQVDQGDQ\IUHTXHQF\
LQWKH79RUUDGLRVSHFWUXP

F  (IIHFWRIH[LVWLQJRUSUREDEOHJRYHUQPHQWDOUHJXODW LRQVRQWKHEXVLQHVV

7KHUH DUH QR QHZ RU SUREDEOH JRYHUQPHQWDO UHJXODWLRQV WKDW PLJKW KDYH D PDWHULDO
DGYHUVHHIIHFWRQWKHEXVLQHVV

G  (VWLPDWHRIWKHDPRXQWVVSHQWIRUUHVHDUFKDQGGHYHORSPHQWDFWLYLWLHV \UV 

7KH&RPSDQ\LVQRWHQJDJHGLQUHVHDUFKDQGGHYHORSPHQWLQWHQVLYHEXVLQHVV

H  &RVWVDQGHIIHFWRIFRPSOLDQFHZLWKHQYLURQPHQWDOODZV

:KHQHYHUUHTXLUHGWKH&RPSDQ\DSSOLHVIRUDQGVHFXUHVSURSHUSHUPLWVFOHDUDQFHV
RU H[HPSWLRQV IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI (QYLURQPHQW DQG 1DWXUDO 5HVRXUFHV
'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK $LU 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ 2IILFH DQG RWKHU UHJXODWRU\ DJHQFLHV IRU
WKHLQVWDOODWLRQDQGRSHUDWLRQRISURSRVHGEURDGFDVWVWDWLRQVQDWLRQZLGH

I  1XPEHURI(PSOR\HHVDQG&%$LIDQ\

7KH&RPSDQ\KDVRQHKXQGUHGHLJKW  HPSOR\HHVDVRI'HFHPEHUDQG
DQWLFLSDWHVQRPDWHULDOFKDQJHZLWKLQWKHHQVXLQJWZHOYHPRQWKV2QHKXQGUHGWKUHH
  HPSOR\HHV DUH XQGHU WKH RSHUDWLRQV GHSDUWPHQW RI WKH &RPSDQ\ ZKLOH WKH
UHPDLQLQJILYH  DUHGRLQJDGPLQLVWUDWLYHIXQFWLRQV7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQR&ROOHFWLYH
%DUJDLQLQJ $JUHHPHQW &%$  ZLWK LWV HPSOR\HHV 7KH&RPSDQ\·V HPSOR\HHV DUH QRW
RQVWULNHQRUKDYHEHHQLQWKHSDVWWKUHH\HDUVQRUWKUHDWHQLQJWRJRRQVWULNH0%&
KDV RU ZLOO KDYH QR PDWHULDO VXSSOHPHQWDO EHQHILWVRU LQFHQWLYH DUUDQJHPHQWV IRU LWV
HPSOR\HHV

J  2WKHU0DWWHUV

7KHUHZHUHQRNQRZQPDMRUULVNVLQYROYHGLQHDFKRIWKHEXVLQHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\

% 3523(57,(6

%URDGFDVW RSHUDWLRQV LQ 0DQLOD DUH SULQFLSDOO\ FRQGXFWHG LQ WKH &&3 &RPSOH[ ORFDWHG DW
5R[DV %RXOHYDUG 3DVD\ &LW\ 7KLV DOVR KRXVHV WKH WUDQVPLWWHU WRZHU DQG RWKHU KLJKFRVW
EURDGFDVWIDFLOLWLHVDQGHTXLSPHQWRIWKH&RPSDQ\

7KH YDULRXV VWDWLRQV RI 0%& DUH ORFDWHG LQ WKH NH\ FLWLHVWRZQV RI WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV DQG DUH
VWDQGLQJ RQ OHDVHG VLWHV ([FHSW IRU WKH WUDQVPLWWHU VLWHV ORFDWHG LQ 0DODQGD\ 3ROR %XODFDQ
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2UWLJDV &HQWHU LQ 3DVLJ &LW\ 6WR 7RPDV /DRDJ %DUDQJD\ /DKXJ &HEX &LW\ 0DWLQD +LOOV
'DYDR &LW\ DQG 3DOR /H\WH WKH UHVW RI WKH WUDQVPLWWHU VLWHV DUH DOVR OHDVHG 7KH DERYH
SURSHUWLHV DUH LQ JRRG FRQGLWLRQ DQG KDYH QR PRUWJDJH RU OLHQ 7KH FDUU\LQJ YDOXHV RI WKH
SURSHUW\ DQG HTXLSPHQW LQYHVWPHQWV DQG RWKHU DVVHWV DUH UHYLHZHG IRU LPSDLUPHQW ZKHQ
HYHQWV RU FKDQJHV LQ FLUFXPVWDQFHV LQGLFDWH WKDW WKH FDUU\LQJ YDOXH PD\ QRW EH UHFRYHUDEOH
3OHDVH VHH 1RWH  RI WKH DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV IRU WKH SROLF\ RQ LPSDLUPHQW RI QRQ
ILQDQFLDODVVHWV

/LVWHGEHORZDUHWKHSURSHUWLHV0%&OHDVHV

&2817(53$57<
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6HS
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3KSPRQWKO\
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GH2UR

2FW

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\



0DU

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\



6DQ3DQWDOHRQ
0DULD7KHUHVD-
0DJDUDR&DPDULQHV
%XVWDPDQWH%LKDJ
6XU
:LOVRQ$ELDQ

3DUROD%UJ\0DVLSDJ
3XHUWR3ULQFHVD&LW\

)HE

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\
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%R5L]DO6DQWLDJR
,VDEHOD

)HE

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\



-RVHILQD0RUHORV
$QJHOHV5LFDUGR
0RUHORV

6RUVRJRQ6RUVRJRQ

0D\

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\



0DH5RZHQD6
$EDORV

.ULVODPYLOOH.DNDU
&RWDEDWR&LW\

0DU

/HDVHRIUDGLR
VWDWLRQ·VSODFH IRU
'=5+ 

3KSPRQWKO\
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7KHUHQHZDORSWLRQVIRUWKHDERYHOHDVH FRQWUDFWVDUHEDVHGXSRQWKH PXWXDODJUHHPHQWRI
WKHFRQWUDFWLQJSDUWLHV



& /(*$/352&((',1*6


0RVW RI WKH OHJDO SURFHHGLQJV LQYROYLQJ 0%& DUH UHODWHG WR LWV YDULRXV DSSOLFDWLRQV SHQGLQJ
ZLWK 17& LQYROYLQJ XSJUDGH RI WUDQVPLWWHU SRZHU DQG FKDQJH RI ORFDWLRQ ,W LV DOVR D
GHIHQGDQWUHVSRQGHQW LQ YDULRXV OHJDO DFWLRQV DULVLQJ LQ WKH RUGLQDU\ FRXUVH RI EXVLQHVV
+RZHYHU DQ\ XOWLPDWH OLDELOLW\ LI DQ\ UHVXOWLQJ IURP WKHVH PDWWHUV ZLOO QRW KDYH D PDWHULDO
HIIHFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQ


' 68%0,66,212)0$77(5672$927(2)6(&85,<+2/'(56

7KHUH ZHUH QR PDWWHUV VXEPLWWHG WR D YRWH RI VHFXULW\ KROGHUV GXULQJ WKH FDOHQGDU \HDU
FRYHUHGE\WKLVUHSRUW



3$57,,²23(5$7,21$/$1'),1$1&,$/,1)250$7,21


( 0$5.(7 )25 5(*,675$17·6 &20021 (48,7< $1' 5(/$7(' 672&.+2/'(5
0$77(56

7KHVKDUHVRIFRPPRQVWRFNRI0%&DUHOLVWHGDQGWUDGHGRQWKH3KLOLSSLQH6WRFN([FKDQJH
7KH VKDUHV DUH QRW DFWLYHO\ WUDGHG LQ WKH PDUNHW 7KH ODVW NQRZQ WUDQVDFWLRQ RI 0%& VKDUHV
ZDVODVW2FWREHUDW3SHUVKDUHLQYROYLQJVKDUHV

7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRNQRZQUHFHQWVDOHVRIXQUHJLVWHUHGVHFXULWLHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\

7KHSXEOLFRZQHUVKLSOHYHORI0%&FRPPRQVKDUHVOLVWHGRQWKH36(DVDW'HFHPEHU
LV

 'LYLGHQGV

([FHSWIRUWUHDVXU\VKDUHVWKHUHLVQRH[LVWLQJUHVWULFWLRQWKDWOLPLWVWKHDELOLW\WR
GHFODUHFDVKGLYLGHQGVRQWKHFRPPRQVWRFN7KHIROORZLQJDUHWKHGLYLGHQGGHFODUDWLRQV
IRUWKHODVWWKUHH\HDUV

&DVK'LYLGHQGV SHUVKDUH 
$PRXQWLQ3HVRV
'HFODUDWLRQ'DWH
5HFRUG'DWH
3D\PHQW'DWH

'HF
-DQ
-DQ

1RY
'HF
'HF

6HSW
2FW
2FW
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YV

 5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH&RPSDQ\·VWRWDOUHYHQXHDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQWKDWLVKLJKHUWKDQWKH
UHYHQXHSRVWHGODVW\HDUPDLQO\GXHWRDGYHUWLVHPHQWVSHQGLQJE\SROLWLFDOFDQGLGDWHVLQ
OLQH ZLWK WKHLU HOHFWLRQ FDPSDLJQ 2Q WKH RWKHU KDQG FRVW RI VHUYLFHV DQG RSHUDWLQJ
H[SHQVHV ERWK LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ DQG 3 PLOOLRQ UHVSHFWLYHO\ 7KH LQFUHDVH LQ
FRVW RI VHUYLFHV ZDV PDLQO\ GXH WR DGGLWLRQDO VHUYLFH IHHV LQFXUUHG DV D UHVXOW RI KLJKHU
UHYHQXHV 7KH LQFUHDVH LQ RSHUDWLQJ H[SHQVHV ZDV PDLQO\ GXH WR KLJKHU SHUVRQQHO
H[SHQVHVVSHFLILFDOO\SHUIRUPDQFHERQXVJLYHQWR HPSOR\HHVDQGYDULDEOH H[SHQVHV DV D
UHVXOWRILQFUHDVHGUHYHQXHVWKLV\HDU

2WKHU LQFRPHQHW LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFRPH
JHQHUDWHG E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ IURP LWV VSRQVRUVKLSV LQ VHYHUDO VKRZVFRQFHUWV GXULQJ WKH
\HDU,QWHUHVWLQFRPHGHFUHDVHGE\FRPSDUHGWRODVW\HDU·VDPRXQWPDLQO\GXHWR
UHGXFHGLQYHVWPHQWEDODQFHRQPRQH\PDUNHWSODFHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU

$VDUHVXOWWKH&RPSDQ\UHJLVWHUHGDQHWLQFRPHRI3PLOOLRQLQDQLQFUHDVHRI
3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ

 )LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG&KDQJHVLQ)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQ


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

0%&LVQRWKDYLQJRUGRHVQRWDQWLFLSDWHKDYLQJZLWKLQWKHQH[WPRQWKVDQ\FDVKIORZ
RUOLTXLGLW\SUREOHPVQHLWKHULVLWLQGHIDXOWRULQEUHDFKRIDQ\QRWHORDQOHDVHRURWKHU
LQGHEWHGQHVV RU ILQDQFLQJ DUUDQJHPHQW UHTXLULQJ LWWR PDNH SD\PHQWV QRU D VLJQLILFDQW
DPRXQW RI WKH UHJLVWUDQW·V WUDGH SD\DEOHV KDYH QRW EHHQ SDLG ZLWKLQ WKH VWDWHG WUDGH
WHUPV

 &DXVHVRI0DWHULDO&KDQJHVIURP3HULRGWR3HULRG  

D &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQ
LQ  WR 3 PLOOLRQ LQ  PDLQO\ GXH WR GHFUHDVHG QHW FDVK IORZV JHQHUDWHG
IURP RSHUDWLRQV 3OHDVH VHH VWDWHPHQW RI FDVK IORZV RI WKH  DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV

E 'XH IURP DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR
(OL]DOGH +ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ &HEX %URDGFDVWLQJ &RPSDQ\ 3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ
&RPSDQ\DQG3DFLILF%URDGFDVWLQJ 6\VWHP ,QFDOORIZKLFKDUH DIILOLDWHG FRPSDQLHV
SOHDVHVHHQRWHRIDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV 7KHEDODQFHDVRI'HFHPEHU
DPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQ
F 0DWHULDOVDQGVXSSOLHVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUGXHWRWKHGHFUHDVHLQWKH
&RPSDQ\·VH[GHDO,QYHQWRU\
G 3UHSDLG H[SHQVHV DQG RWKHU FXUUHQW DVVHWV GHFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU 
EHFDXVHLQWKHFXUUHQWSRUWLRQRILQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGVDUHFODVVLILHGXQGHU
SUHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHUFXUUHQWDVVHWVZKLOHLQWKHFXUUHQWSRUWLRQRILQSXW
WD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGVDUHFODVVLILHGXQGHURWKHUQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
H 3URSHUW\ DQG HTXLSPHQW DW UHYDOXHG DPRXQW LQFUHDVHG E\ DOPRVW 3 PLOOLRQ RU
7KHLQFUHDVHLVPDLQO\GXHWRWKHDSSUDLVDOLQFUHDVHLQODQG
I ,QYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVDPRXQWLQJWR3PLOOLRQDVRI'HFHPEHUUHSUHVHQW
WKH QHW EDODQFH RQ WKH DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ODQG DQG FRQVWUXFWLRQ RI EXLOGLQJ LQ 
LQWHQGHG IRU IXWXUH XVH RI WKH &RPSDQ\ 7KH VDLG SURSHUW\ LV FXUUHQWO\ EHLQJ OHDVHG
RXW RQ D \HDUO\ EDVLV WR JHQHUDWH UHYHQXH LQ RUGHUWR VXVWDLQ LWV PDLQWHQDQFH FRVWV
7KH GHFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU  UHSUHVHQWV GHSUHFLDWLRQ FKDUJHV GXULQJ WKH
\HDU
J ,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. ZKLFK EHFDPH
HIIHFWLYH RQ 2FWREHU   7KH GHFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU  UHSUHVHQWV
DPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJWKH\HDU
K 2WKHU QRQFXUUHQW DVVHWV LQFUHDVHG IURP 3 PLOOLRQ LQ  WR 3 PLOOLRQ LQ 
DQ LQFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ PLVFHOODQHRXV
GHSRVLWVDQGLQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGV
L 'XHWRDIILOLDWHVKDYHD]HUREDODQFHDWWKHHQGRIIURPDEDODQFHRI3PLOOLRQ
LQ SOHDVHVHHEDERYHRQGLVFXVVLRQRQGXHIURPDIILOLDWHV 
M 'LYLGHQG SD\DEOH LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  DV WKH SD\PHQW RI GLYLGHQGV
GHFODUHGLQLVVWLOOGXHRQ-DQXDU\
N 7DOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQVSD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXH
WRLQFUHDVHGSODFHPHQWRIFOLHQWLQLWLDWHGSURPRVGXULQJWKH\HDU
O ,QFRPH WD[ SD\DEOH GHFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH WLPLQJ
GLIIHUHQFH LQ WKH FROOHFWLRQ RI FUHGLWDEOH ZLWKKROGLQJ WD[ FHUWLILFDWHV DQG SD\PHQWV
PDGHLQWKHSUHYLRXVTXDUWHUV
P $FFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV GHFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR
UHPHDVXUHPHQW JDLQ RQ DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV FORVHG WR HTXLW\ FRQVLVWLQJ RI
DFWXDULDO JDLQV RQ SUHVHQW YDOXH RI EHQHILW REOLJDWLRQ DQG IDLU YDOXH RI SODQ DVVHWV
3OHDVHVHH1RWHRIDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQW


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

Q $FFUXHG UHQW RI 3 PLOOLRQ UHSUHVHQWV WKH GLIIHUHQFH EHWZHHQ WKH UHQW H[SHQVH
FRPSXWHG RQ D VWUDLJKW OLQH EDVLV DQG WKH DFWXDO UHQWDO SD\PHQWV PDGH  3OHDVH VHH
1RWHRIWKHDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
R 'HIHUUHG LQFRPH WD[ OLDELOLWLHVQHW LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU   3OHDVH VHH
1RWHERIDXGLWHG)6
S 5HYDOXDWLRQLQFUHPHQWRQODQGLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUGXHWRWKHLQFUHDVH
LQWKHUHYDOXHGDPRXQWEDVHGRQWKHYDOXDWLRQFRQGXFWHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDSSUDLVDO
FRPSDQLHV
T 5HVHUYHIRUIOXFWXDWLRQLQDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQ
RU  GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ WKH IDLU YDOXH RI WKH TXRWHG VKDUHV RI VWRFN DV
GHWHUPLQHGEDVHGRQTXRWHGPDUNHWSULFH
U 5HPHDVXUHPHQW RQ DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU 
DVDUHVXOWRIWKHLPSDFWRIWKHDGRSWLRQRI3$653OHDVHVHHPDERYH
V 5HWDLQHG HDUQLQJVLQFUHDVHGE\3 PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWR WKH QHW HIIHFW
RI LQFRPH DQG WKH GHFODUDWLRQ RI FDVK GLYLGHQGV GXULQJ WKH \HDU 3OHDVH VHH
VWDWHPHQWVRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\RIDXGLWHG)6

 3ODQ2I2SHUDWLRQ

7KLV\HDU0%& ZLOOEULQJDKRVWRISURPLVLQJHYHQWSHUIRUPDQFHV FUHDWLQJDSLSHOLQHRI
UHYHQXH VWUHDPV WKDW ZLOO FRPSOHPHQW WKH H[LVWLQJ DLUWLPH UHYHQXHV $VLGH IURP WKH
VXFFHVVIXOPRYLHSUHPLHUVKRZLQJDQGRQDLUDQGILHOGSURPRWLRQV0%&KDVRQFHDJDLQ
VHW D OLQHXS RI HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO VXUHO\ SURYLGH PD[LPXP YDOXH IRU DGYHUWLVHUV DQG WKH
OLVWHQLQJSXEOLF

x )LUVWLVWKH0DQLOD%D\6HD6SRUWV)HVWLYDOZKLFKZDVKHOGODVW0DUFKZKHUH
DQ HOLWH URVWHU RI SDUWLFLSDQWV ZDV LQYLWHG WR MRLQ WKH HYHQW 2UJDQL]HG E\ 0DQLOD
%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\DQGWKH&LW\RI3DVD\LQFRRSHUDWLRQZLWKWKH3KLOLSSLQH&RDVW
*XDUG WKLV \HDU·V 6HD 6SRUWV IHVWLYDO IHDWXUHG PL[HG WHDP FKDPSLRQVKLSV IRU WKH
'UDJRQ %RDW 5DFH VWRFN DQG IRUPXOD UDFHV LQ WKH PRWRUL]HG  FRPSHWLWLRQ
&RQYHUJLQJ DORQJ 5R[DV %RXOHYDUG·V %D\ZDON ZDWHU HQWKXVLDVWV DQG KREE\LVWV
FKHHUHGRQWKHSDUWLFLSDQWVLQWKHVHSRSXODUVSHFWDWRUVSRUWV
x 7KH PXFKDQWLFLSDWHG HYHQW RI WKH FRPSDQ\ WKH $OLZDQ )LHVWD WR EH KHOG RQ
$SULO   EURXJKW WKH EHVW ELJJHVW ORXGHVW DQG WKH PRVW FRORUIXO ILHVWDV
WK
IURP DOO RYHU WKH 3KLOLSSLQHV WR 0DQLOD 1RZ RQ LWV   \HDU WKH IHVWLYDO RQFH DJDLQ
ZLOO VKRZFDVH WKH GDQFH FRPSHWLWLRQ ZKHUH WKH FRQWLQJHQWV SUHVHQW IDEXORXVO\
FKRUHRJUDSKHG URXWLQHV LQ IXOO FRVWXPHG JORU\ 7KH WKUHH RWKHU FDWHJRULHV RI WKH
HYHQWZHUHWKH)ORDW&RPSHWLWLRQ5H\QDQJ$OLZDQDQGWKH3KRWR&RPSHWLWLRQ
x 0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQZLOOEHKHOGLQ-XO\DW&&3*URXQG3DVD\&LW\7KHDLP
RI WKLV HYHQW LV WR UDLVH IXQGV IRU WKH GULYH WR FOHDQ XS WKH 0DQLOD %D\ RI WUDVK DQG
SROOXWDQWV DV ZHOO DV WR UDLVH DZDUHQHVV DPRQJ )LOLSLQRV WR WDNH FDUH RI RXU
HQYLURQPHQW DQG SUHVHUYH RXU FLW\·V QDWXUDO EHDXW\ VWDUWLQJ ZLWK WKH SLFWXUHVTXH
WK
HFRORJ\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\7KH0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQQRZRQLWV \HDULVDIXQG
GULYHRUJDQL]HGDQGPDQDJHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
x 0%& QDWLRQDO &KRUDO &RPSHWLWLRQ ZKLFK ZLOO WDNH SODFH LQ 'HFHPEHU  DOVR
SURPLVHV WR EULQJ KLJKO\ DFFODLPHG FRQWHVWDQWV QRW RQO\ IURP 0HWUR 0DQLOD EXW DOO
RYHUWKHFRXQWU\
x 7KH&RPSDQ\DOVRSODQVWRWLHXSZLWKPRYLHDQGUHFRUGLQJRXWILWVIRUSURPRWRXUV
OLYH SHUIRUPDQFHV DQG IDQV· GD\V LQ PDOOV 7KHUH DUH DOVR VHYHUDO SURPRV LQ WKH
SLSHOLQH OLNH WKH \HDUO\ %DJRQJ 7DRQ %DJRQJ 0LO\RQ DQG RWKHU FOLHQW LQLWLDWHG
SURPRVWKDWSURPLVHWREHDELJKLWDPRQJUDGLROLVWHQHUV

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU


7KH &RPSDQ\ DOVR SODQV WR HDUPDUN 3 PLOOLRQ FDSLWDO H[SHQGLWXUH IRU LWV YDULRXV
SURMHFWV QDPHO\ 5+79 EURDGFDVW H[SDQVLRQ RYHU YDULRXV FDEOH DQG 79 FKDQQHOV
OHDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWDW+HDG2IILFHDXGLRDQGYLGHRVWUHDPLQJRYHUWKHLQWHUQHWDQG
LPSURYHPHQWRIH[LVWLQJVWDWLRQV·HTXLSPHQWDQGIDFLOLWLHVQDWLRQZLGH7KLVZLOOEHIXQGHG
E\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

7( 2WKHU'LVFORVXUHPDWWHUV

D 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRU
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
E 7KHUHDUHQRXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV
F 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKH
FXUUHQWILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV
G 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO HYHQWV VXEVHTXHQW WR WKH HQGRI WKH DFFRXQWLQJ SHULRG WKDW
KDYHQRWEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHSHULRG
H 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQWKHFRPSRVLWLRQRIWKHLVVXHUGXULQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRG
LQFOXGLQJEXVLQHVVFRPELQDWLRQVDFTXLVLWLRQRUGLVSRVDORIVXEVLGLDULHVDQGORQJWHUP
LQYHVWPHQWVUHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
I 7KHUH DUH QR FKDQJHV LQ FRQWLQJHQW OLDELOLWLHV RU FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV VLQFH WKH ODVW
DQQXDOEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH
J 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOFRQWLQJHQFLHVDQGDQ\HYHQWVRUWUDQVDFWLRQVWKDWDUHPDWHULDO
WRWKHXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG
K 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVGHPDQGVFRPPLWPHQWVHYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWZLOO
KDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\
L 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDW KDG RU WKDW DUH UHDVRQDEO\
H[SHFWHG WR KDYH D PDWHULDO LPSDFW RQ WKH QHW VDOHV RU UHYHQXHV RU LQFRPH IURP
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
M 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH
&RPSDQ\·VFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
N 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRU
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
O 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFWRU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ
WKDW LV PDWHULDO WR WKH &RPSDQ\ LQFOXGLQJ DQ\ GHIDXOW RU DFFHOHUDWLRQ RI DQ
REOLJDWLRQ
P 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV
LQFOXGLQJ FRQWLQJHQW REOLJDWLRQV  DQG RWKHU UHODWLRQVKLSV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ ZLWK
XQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHVRURWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Q 7KHUHDUHQREXVLQHVVRIJHRJUDSKLFDOVHJPHQWVIRUZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHSRUWHG
WRWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV %2' DQGFKLHIH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU
R 7KHSULFLQJRILQWHUVHJPHQWWUDQVIHUVZDVEDVHGRQFRVWDWWKHWLPHRIWUDQVDFWLRQ
S 7KHUH ZHUH QR FKDQJHV LQ DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV DGRSWHG IRU VHJPHQW UHSRUWLQJ WKDW
KDYHDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQVHJPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQ

 2WKHU'LVFORVXUH5HTXLUHPHQWV3HU$QQH[0SDUDJUDSKHRI5XOH

D 0DUNHWDEOH6HFXULWLHV
7KH DJJUHJDWH FRVW RU PDUNHW YDOXH RI VKRUWWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV FRQVWLWXWHV OHVV WKDQ
RIWRWDODVVHWVDVRI'HFHPEHU


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

E 7KHDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHRIPRUHWKDQ3RURQHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVIURP
'LUHFWRUV 2IILFHUV (PSOR\HHV 5HODWHG 3DUWLHV DQG 3ULQFLSDO 6WRFNKROGHUV -RVH 0
7DUXF-U²3 
F 7KHDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWGRHV
QRW H[FHHG ILYH SHUFHQW RI WRWDO DVVHWV DQG KDYH QR PDWHULDO FKDQJHV LQ WKH
LQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHILOHGIURPWKDWODVWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHG
G 7KHUHZHUHDPRXQWVGXHIURPDIILOLDWHVLQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWWKDWH[FHHGILYH
SHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWV3OHDVHVHHQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
H ,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV2WKHU$VVHWV²3OHDVHUHIHUWRQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
I /RQJWHUP'HEW²1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
J ,QGHEWHGQHVVWR5HODWHG3DUWLHV1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
K *XDUDQWHHVRI6HFXULWLHVRI2WKHU,VVXHUV²1RWDSSOLFDEOH
L &DSLWDO 6WRFN ² WKHUH ZHUH QR VLJQLILFDQW FKDQJHV VLQFH WKH GDWH RI WKH ODVW EDODQFH
VKHHWILOHG

7LWOHRI,VVXH
&RPPRQ6KDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHDXWKRUL]HG
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVLVVXHGDQGRXWVWDQGLQJ
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVUHVHUYHGIRURSWLRQVZDUUDQWV
1,/
FRQYHUVLRQDQGRWKHUULJKWV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\UHODWHGSDUWLHV
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\GLUHFWRUVRIILFHUVDQG
VKDUHV
HPSOR\HHV
2WKHUV
VKDUHV




YV

 5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH &RPSDQ\·V WRWDO UHYHQXH DPRXQWHG WR 3 PLOOLRQ WKDW LV  KLJKHU WKDQ WKH
UHYHQXHSRVWHGODVW\HDU2QWKHRWKHUKDQGFRVWDQGRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZDVUHGXFHGE\
3 PLOOLRQ RU  ORZHU DV FRPSDUHG WR ODVW \HDU 7KLV ZDV PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH
GHFUHDVHLQWKLV\HDU·VVHUYLFHIHHVDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGDPRUWL]DWLRQH[SHQVHV

2WKHULQFRPHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRU7KLVLQFUHDVHZDVEURXJKWDERXWE\
WKH LQFUHDVH LQ WKH FRPSDQ\·V PLVFHOODQHRXV LQFRPH GXULQJ WKH \HDU 7KH LQFUHDVH LQ
PLVFHOODQHRXVLQFRPHDFFRXQWZDVPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFRPHJHQHUDWHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
IURP LWV VSRQVRUVKLSV LQ VHYHUDO VKRZVFRQFHUWV GXULQJ WKH \HDU ,QWHUHVW LQFRPH
GHFUHDVHG E\  FRPSDUHG WR ODVW \HDU·V DPRXQW PDLQO\ GXH WR UHGXFHG LQYHVWPHQW
EDODQFHRQPRQH\PDUNHWSODFHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU

$VDUHVXOWWKH&RPSDQ\UHJLVWHUHGDQHWLQFRPHRI3PLOOLRQLQDQLQFUHDVHRI
3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ


 )LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG&KDQJHVLQ)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQ

0%&LVQRWKDYLQJRUGRHVQRWDQWLFLSDWHKDYLQJZLWKLQWKHQH[WPRQWKVDQ\FDVKIORZ
RUOLTXLGLW\SUREOHPVQHLWKHULVLWLQGHIDXOWRULQEUHDFKRIDQ\QRWHORDQOHDVHRURWKHU
LQGHEWHGQHVV RU ILQDQFLQJ DUUDQJHPHQW UHTXLULQJ LWWR PDNH SD\PHQWV QRU D VLJQLILFDQW


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

DPRXQW RI WKH UHJLVWUDQW·V WUDGH SD\DEOHV KDYH QRW EHHQ SDLG ZLWKLQ WKH VWDWHG WUDGH
WHUPV

6( &DXVHVRI0DWHULDO&KDQJHVIURP3HULRGWR3HULRG  

D &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUIURP3PLOOLRQLQ
WR3PLOOLRQLQPDLQO\GXHWRLQFUHDVHGQHWFDVKIORZVJHQHUDWHGIURP
RSHUDWLRQV 3OHDVH VHH VWDWHPHQW RI FDVK IORZV RI WKH  DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
E 5HFHLYDEOHVQHW LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ
QDWLRQDODQGSURYLQFLDOWUDGHDFFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDVZHOODVWKHDGYDQFHVWRPDQDJHU
DFFRXQW7KHFUHGLWWHUPJLYHQWRUHJXODUFOLHQWVLVGD\V3OHDVHVHH1RWHRIWKH
DXGLWHG)6
F 0DWHULDOVDQGVXSSOLHVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUGXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHLQWKH
FRPSDQ\·V([GHDO,QYHQWRU\
G 3UHSDLGH[SHQVHVDQGRWKHUFXUUHQWDVVHWVGHFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\
GXHWRWKHDPRUWL]DWLRQRISUHSD\PHQWVDQGLQSXWWD[RQFDSLWDOJRRGVDFFRXQWV
H 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDWFRVWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUZKLOH3URSHUW\
DQGHTXLSPHQWDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQWLQFUHDVHGE\DOPRVW3PLOOLRQRU7KH
LQFUHDVH LV PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH FRPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI DGGLWLRQDO WUDQVPLWWLQJ DQG
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ HTXLSPHQW DQG WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ WKH YDOXH RI LWV FRQVWUXFWLRQ LQ
SURJUHVVDFFRXQW
I ,QYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVDPRXQWLQJWR3PLOOLRQDVRI'HFHPEHUUHSUHVHQW
WKH QHW EDODQFH RQ WKH DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ODQG DQG FRQVWUXFWLRQ RI EXLOGLQJ LQ 
LQWHQGHG IRU IXWXUH XVH RI WKH &RPSDQ\ 7KH VDLG SURSHUW\ LV FXUUHQWO\ EHLQJ OHDVHG
RXW LQ D \HDUO\ EDVLV WR JHQHUDWH UHYHQXH LQ RUGHUWR VXVWDLQ LWV PDLQWHQDQFH FRVWV
7KH GHFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU  UHSUHVHQWV GHSUHFLDWLRQ FKDUJHV GXULQJ WKH
\HDU
J ,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV DULVH IURP WKH &RPSDQ\·V DFTXLVLWLRQ RI ':5. ZKLFK EHFDPH
HIIHFWLYH RQ 2FWREHU   7KH GHFUHDVH RI 3 PLOOLRQ RU  UHSUHVHQWV
DPRUWL]DWLRQFRVWVGXULQJWKH\HDU
K 'XH WR DIILOLDWHV UHSUHVHQWV WKH LQWHUHVWIUHH DGYDQFHV PDGH WR WKH &RPSDQ\ E\
(OL]DOGH+ROGLQJV&RUSRUDWLRQDQDIILOLDWHXQGHUFRPPRQFRQWUROZLWKWKH&RPSDQ\
7KHEDODQFHDVRI'HFHPEHUDPRXQWHGWR3PLOOLRQ
L 'LYLGHQG SD\DEOH LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 PLOOLRQ RU  7KH ODUJH LQFUHDVH LV PDLQO\
GXH WR WKH SD\PHQW GDWH QHDULQJ WKH KROLGD\V ZKLFKLV GXH RQ 'HFHPEHU  
'XULQJ WKLV WLPH PRVW RI WKH VWRFNKROGHUV ZHUH XQDEOH WR FODLP WKHLU UHVSHFWLYH
GLYLGHQGVDQGZHUHFODLPHGRQO\WKHIROORZLQJ\HDU
M 7DOHQWIHHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQVSD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXH
WRLQFUHDVHGSODFHPHQWRIFOLHQWLQLWLDWHGSURPRVGXULQJWKH\HDU
N ,QFRPHWD[SD\DEOHLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRKLJKHULQFRPH
EHIRUHLQFRPHWD[UHJLVWHUHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
O $FFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWRKLJKHU
DFFUXDO RI VHUYLFH FRVWV RI HPSOR\HHV EDVHG RQ DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ YHUVXV DFWXDO
FRQWULEXWLRQWRWKHUHWLUHPHQWIXQG
P 'HIHUUHGLQFRPHWD[OLDELOLWLHVQHWLQFUHDVHGE\3PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWR
LQFUHDVH LQ WKH DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILWV DQG XQDPRUWL]HG FRQWULEXWLRQ WR SDVW
VHUYLFHFRVWDVZHOODVLQFUHDVHLQWKHIDLUYDOXHRIODQGFDUULHGDWUHYDOXHGDPRXQW
Q 5HWDLQHG HDUQLQJVLQFUHDVHGE\3 PLOOLRQRUPDLQO\GXHWR WKH QHW HIIHFW
RILQFRPHDQGWKHGHFODUDWLRQRIFDVKGLYLGHQGVGXULQJWKH\HDU


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

$ 3ODQ2I2SHUDWLRQ

7KLV\HDU0%& ZLOOEULQJDKRVWRISURPLVLQJHYHQWSHUIRUPDQFHV FUHDWLQJDSLSHOLQHRI
UHYHQXH VWUHDPV WKDW ZLOO FRPSOHPHQW WKH H[LVWLQJ DLUWLPH UHYHQXHV $VLGH IURP WKH
VXFFHVVIXOPRYLHSUHPLHUVKRZLQJDQGRQDLUDQGILHOGSURPRWLRQV0%&KDVRQFHDJDLQ
VHW D OLQHXS RI HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO VXUHO\ SURYLGH PD[LPXP YDOXH IRU DGYHUWLVHUV DQG WKH
OLVWHQLQJSXEOLF

x )LUVWLVWKH0DQLOD%D\6HDVSRUWV)HVWLYDOZKLFKZDVKHOGODVW0DUFKZKHUH
DQ HOLWH URVWHU RI SDUWLFLSDQWV ZDV LQYLWHG WR MRLQ WKH HYHQW 2UJDQL]HG E\ 0DQLOD
%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\DQGWKH&LW\RI3DVD\LQFRRSHUDWLRQZLWKWKH3KLOLSSLQH&RDVW
*XDUG WKLV \HDU·V VHDVSRUWV IHVWLYDO IHDWXUHG PL[HG WHDP FKDPSLRQVKLSV IRU WKH
'UDJRQ %RDW 5DFH VWRFN DQG IRUPXOD UDFHV LQ WKH PRWRUL]HG  FRPSHWLWLRQ
&RQYHUJLQJ DORQJ 5R[DV %RXOHYDUG·V %D\ZDON ZDWHU HQWKXVLDVWV DQG KREE\LVWV
FKHHUHGRQWKHSDUWLFLSDQWVLQWKHVHSRSXODUVSHFWDWRUVSRUWV
x 7KH PRVW VXFFHVVIXO HYHQW RI WKH FRPSDQ\ WKH $OLZDQ )LHVWD KHOG RQ $SULO 
EURXJKWWKHEHVWELJJHVWORXGHVWDQGWKHPRVWFRORUIXOILHVWDVIURPDOORYHUWKH
WK
3KLOLSSLQHV WR 0DQLOD 1RZ RQ LWV   \HDU WKH IHVWLYDO RQFH DJDLQ VKRZFDVHG WKH
GDQFHFRPSHWLWLRQZKHUHWKHFRQWLQJHQWVSUHVHQWIDEXORXVO\FKRUHRJUDSKHGURXWLQHV
LQ IXOO FRVWXPHG JORU\ 7KH WKUHH RWKHU FDWHJRULHV RI WKH HYHQW ZHUH WKH )ORDW
&RPSHWLWLRQ5H\QDQJ$OLZDQDQGWKH3KRWR&RPSHWLWLRQ
x 0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQZLOOEHKHOGLQ-XO\DW&&3*URXQG3DVD\&LW\7KH
DLPRIWKLVHYHQWLVWRUDLVHIXQGVIRUWKHGULYHWRFOHDQXSWKH0DQLOD%D\RIWUDVKDQG
SROOXWDQWV DV ZHOO DV WR UDLVH DZDUHQHVV DPRQJ )LOLSLQRV WR WDNH FDUH RI RXU
HQYLURQPHQW DQG SUHVHUYH RXU FLW\·V QDWXUDO EHDXW\ VWDUWLQJ ZLWK WKH SLFWXUHVTXH
UG
HFRORJ\RIWKH0DQLOD%D\7KH0DQLOD%D\&OHDQXS5XQQRZRQLWV \HDULVDIXQG
GULYHRUJDQL]HGDQGPDQDJHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
x 0%& QDWLRQDO &KRUDO &RPSHWLWLRQ ZKLFK ZLOO WDNH SODFH LQ 'HFHPEHU  DOVR
SURPLVHV WR EULQJ KLJKO\ DFFODLPHG FRQWHVWDQWV QRW RQO\ IURP 0HWUR 0DQLOD EXW DOO
RYHUWKHFRXQWU\
x 7KH&RPSDQ\DOVRSODQVWRWLHXSZLWKPRYLHDQGUHFRUGLQJRXWILWVIRUSURPRWRXUV
OLYH SHUIRUPDQFHV DQG IDQV· GD\V LQ PDOOV 7KHUH DUH DOVR VHYHUDO SURPRV LQ WKH
SLSHOLQH OLNH WKH \HDUO\ %DJRQJ 7DRQ %DJRQJ 0LO\RQ DQG RWKHU FOLHQW LQLWLDWHG
SURPRVWKDWSURPLVHWREHDELJKLWDPRQJUDGLROLVWHQHUV

7KH &RPSDQ\ DOVR SODQV WR HDUPDUN 3 PLOOLRQ FDSLWDO H[SHQGLWXUH IRU LWV YDULRXV
SURMHFWV QDPHO\ 5HORFDWLRQ RI WUDQVPLWWHUV DQG DQWHQQDH WRZHUV RI PDQLOD VWDWLRQV WR
%6$ WRZHUV LQ 2UWLJDV &HQWHU 5+79 EURDGFDVW H[SDQVLRQ RYHU YDULRXV FDEOH DQG 79
FKDQQHOV OHDVHKROG LPSURYHPHQW DW +HDG 2IILFH DXGLR DQG YLGHR VWUHDPLQJ RYHU WKH
LQWHUQHW DQG LPSURYHPHQW RI H[LVWLQJ VWDWLRQV· HTXLSPHQW DQG IDFLOLWLHV QDWLRQZLGH 7KLV
ZLOOEHIXQGHGE\FDVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

% 2WKHU'LVFORVXUHPDWWHUV

D 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRU
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
E 7KHUHDUHQRXVXDOLWHPVDIIHFWLQJDVVHWVOLDELOLWLHVHTXLW\QHWLQFRPHRUFDVKIORZV
F 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRULQWHULPSHULRGVRIWKH
FXUUHQWILQDQFLDO\HDURULQHVWLPDWHVRIDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQSULRUILQDQFLDO\HDUV
G 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO HYHQWV VXEVHTXHQW WR WKH HQGRI WKH DFFRXQWLQJ SHULRG WKDW
KDYHQRWEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUWKHSHULRG

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

H 7KHUHDUHQRFKDQJHVLQWKHFRPSRVLWLRQRIWKHLVVXHUGXULQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRG
LQFOXGLQJEXVLQHVVFRPELQDWLRQVDFTXLVLWLRQRUGLVSRVDORIVXEVLGLDULHVDQGORQJWHUP
LQYHVWPHQWVUHVWUXFWXULQJVDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
I 7KHUH DUH QR FKDQJHV LQ FRQWLQJHQW OLDELOLWLHV RU FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV VLQFH WKH ODVW
DQQXDOEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH
J 7KHUHDUHQRPDWHULDOFRQWLQJHQFLHVDQGDQ\HYHQWVRUWUDQVDFWLRQVWKDWDUHPDWHULDO
WRWKHXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHFXUUHQWLQWHULPSHULRG
K 7KHUHDUHQRNQRZQWUHQGVGHPDQGVFRPPLWPHQWVHYHQWVRUXQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDWZLOO
KDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\·VOLTXLGLW\
L 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ WUHQGV HYHQWV RU XQFHUWDLQWLHVWKDW KDG RU WKDW DUH UHDVRQDEO\
H[SHFWHG WR KDYH D PDWHULDO LPSDFW RQ WKH QHW VDOHV RU UHYHQXHV RU LQFRPH IURP
FRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
M 7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW HOHPHQWV RI LQFRPH RU ORVV WKDW GLG QRW DULVH IURP WKH
&RPSDQ\·VFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
N 7KHUHDUHQRVHDVRQDODVSHFWVWKDWKDGDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRU
UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
O 7KHUH DUH QR NQRZQ HYHQWV WKDW ZLOO WULJJHU GLUHFWRU FRQWLQJHQW ILQDQFLDO REOLJDWLRQ
WKDW LV PDWHULDO WR WKH &RPSDQ\ LQFOXGLQJ DQ\ GHIDXOW RU DFFHOHUDWLRQ RI DQ
REOLJDWLRQ
P 7KHUH DUH QR PDWHULDO RIIEDODQFH VKHHW WUDQVDFWLRQV DUUDQJHPHQWV REOLJDWLRQV
LQFOXGLQJ FRQWLQJHQW REOLJDWLRQV  DQG RWKHU UHODWLRQVKLSV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ ZLWK
XQFRQVROLGDWHGHQWLWLHVRURWKHUSHUVRQVFUHDWHGGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Q 7KHUHDUHQREXVLQHVVRIJHRJUDSKLFDOVHJPHQWVIRUZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHSRUWHG
WRWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV %2' DQGFKLHIH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU
R 7KHSULFLQJRILQWHUVHJPHQWWUDQVIHUVZDVEDVHGRQFRVWDWWKHWLPHRIWUDQVDFWLRQ
S 7KHUH ZHUH QR FKDQJHV LQ DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV DGRSWHG IRU VHJPHQW UHSRUWLQJ WKDW
KDYHDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQVHJPHQWLQIRUPDWLRQ

 2WKHU'LVFORVXUH5HTXLUHPHQWV3HU$QQH[0SDUDJUDSKHRI5XOH

D 0DUNHWDEOH6HFXULWLHV
7KH DJJUHJDWH FRVW RU PDUNHW YDOXH RI VKRUWWHUP LQYHVWPHQWV FRQVWLWXWHV OHVV WKDQ
RIWRWDODVVHWVDVRI'HFHPEHU
E 7KHDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHRIPRUHWKDQ3RURQHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWVIURP
'LUHFWRUV 2IILFHUV (PSOR\HHV 5HODWHG 3DUWLHV DQG 3ULQFLSDO 6WRFNKROGHUV -RVH 0
7DUXF-U²3 
F 7KHDYDLODEOHIRUVDOHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRI3LQWKHUHODWHGEDODQFHVKHHWGRHV
QRW H[FHHG ILYH SHUFHQW RI WRWDO DVVHWV DQG KDYH QR PDWHULDO FKDQJHV LQ WKH
LQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHILOHGIURPWKDWODVWSUHYLRXVO\UHSRUWHG
G 7KHUH ZHUH QR DPRXQWV GXH IURP DIILOLDWHV LQ WKH UHODWHG EDODQFH VKHHW WKDW H[FHHG
ILYHSHUFHQWRIWRWDODVVHWV
H ,QWDQJLEOH$VVHWV2WKHU$VVHWV²3OHDVHUHIHUWRQRWHRIWKHDXGLWHG)6
I /RQJWHUP'HEW²1REDODQFHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
J ,QGHEWHGQHVVWR5HODWHG3DUWLHVDPRXQWHGWR3
K *XDUDQWHHVRI6HFXULWLHVRI2WKHU,VVXHUV²1RWDSSOLFDEOH
L &DSLWDO 6WRFN ² WKHUH ZHUH QR VLJQLILFDQW FKDQJHV VLQFH WKH GDWH RI WKH ODVW EDODQFH
VKHHWILOHG

7LWOHRI,VVXH
&RPPRQ6KDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHDXWKRUL]HG
VKDUHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVLVVXHGDQGRXWVWDQGLQJ
VKDUHV

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

1XPEHURIVKDUHVUHVHUYHGIRURSWLRQVZDUUDQWV
FRQYHUVLRQDQGRWKHUULJKWV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\UHODWHGSDUWLHV
1XPEHURIVKDUHVKHOGE\GLUHFWRUVRIILFHUVDQG
HPSOR\HHV
2WKHUV


1,/
VKDUHV
VKDUHV
VKDUHV
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,QGHSHQGHQW3XEOLF$FFRXQWDQWV

7KH&RPSDQ\·VH[WHUQDODXGLWRULV6\FLS*RUUHV9HOD\R &R&3$·V,QFRPSOLDQFHZLWK6(&
0HPRUDQGXP &LUFXODU 1R  VHULHV RI  FKDQJHV ZHUH PDGH LQ WKH DVVLJQPHQW RI
(QJDJHPHQW3DUWQHUVZLWKLQWKHJURXSDWOHDVWHYHU\ILYH  \HDUV

$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV

7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVHWVRXWWKH DJJUHJDWHIHHVELOOHGIRUHDFKRI WKHODVW FDOHQGDU\HDUVIRU
SURIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHVUHQGHUHGE\6\FLS*RUUHV9HOD\R &R&3$·V

$XGLWDQG$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV



5HJXODU$XGLW



5HYLHZRI3URSRVHG,QFUHDVHLQ$&6



/RQJ)RUP$XGLW



5HYLHZRI)RUHFDVW



$OO2WKHU)HHV



7RWDO$XGLWDQG$XGLW5HODWHG)HHV







6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU
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5HWXUQRQ6DOHV 526 
1HW,QFRPH
'LYLGHE\6DOHV
526

(DUQLQJV3HU6KDUH (36 
1HW,QFRPH
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
(36

&XUUHQW5DWLR
&XUUHQW$VVHWV
'LYLGHE\&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW5DWLR

'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV
'LYLGHE\6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR

%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH
7RWDO6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH




























$VUHVWDWHG 


























'LVFXVVLRQRQ.H\3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV   


D 526GHFUHDVHGIURPWRPDLQO\GXHKLJKHUFRVWVDQGH[SHQVHVLQ
FRPSDUHGZLWK
E 7KH (36 LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 SHU VKDUH GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ QHW LQFRPH ZLWK WKH WRWDO
QXPEHURXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
F &XUUHQWUDWLRLQFUHDVHGIURPWRPDLQO\WRWKHKLJKEDODQFHRIUHFHLYDEOHVIURP
DIILOLDWHVGXULQJWKH\HDU
G 7KHGHEWHTXLW\UDWLRLQFUHDVHGWRIURPLQPDLQO\GXHWRWKHLQFUHDVH
LQWKHFRPSDQ\·VDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGH[SHQVHVDVZHOODVGHIHUUHGLQFRPHWD[
OLDELOLWLHV
H 7KH ERRN YDOXH SHU VKDUH LQFUHDVHG IURP 3 WR 3 PDLQO\ GXH WR WKH
UHPHDVXUHPHQWVRQDFFUXHGUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDQGQHWLQFRPHGXULQJWKH\HDUZLWKWKH
QXPEHURIRXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW












5HWXUQRQ6DOHV 526 
1HW,QFRPH
'LYLGHE\6DOHV
526



6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU


$VUHVWDWHG 







$VUHVWDWHG 











$VUHVWDWHG 





















(DUQLQJV3HU6KDUH (36 
1HW,QFRPH
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
(36

&XUUHQW5DWLR
&XUUHQW$VVHWV
'LYLGHE\&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW5DWLR

'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV
'LYLGHE\6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'HEW(TXLW\5DWLR

%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH
7RWDO6WRFNKROGHUV·(TXLW\
'LYLGHE\1RRI6KDUHV2XWVWDQGLQJ
%RRN9DOXH3HU6KDUH


$VUHVWDWHG 











































'LVFXVVLRQRQ.H\3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV   


D 526LQFUHDVHGE\IURPWRPDLQO\GXHKLJKHUQHWLQFRPHHDUQHG
GXULQJWKH\HDU
E 7KH (36 LQFUHDVHG E\ 3 SHU VKDUH GXH WR WKH LQFUHDVH LQ QHW LQFRPH ZLWK WKH WRWDO
QXPEHURXWVWDQGLQJVKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
F &XUUHQW UDWLR LQFUHDVHG IURP  WR  PDLQO\WR KLJKHU FDVK EDODQFH DV D UHVXOW RI
KLJKHUQHWLQFRPHGXULQJWKH\HDU
G 7KH GHEWHTXLW\ UDWLR GHFUHDVHG WR  PDLQO\ GXH WR UHYDOXDWLRQ LQFUHPHQW LQ ODQG
YDOXHLQ
H 7KHERRNYDOXHSHUVKDUHLQFUHDVHGIURP3WR3PDLQO\GXHWRWKHUHYDOXDWLRQ
LQFUHPHQWLQODQGYDOXHDQGQHWLQFRPHGXULQJWKH\HDUZLWKWKHQXPEHURIRXWVWDQGLQJ
VKDUHVUHPDLQLQJFRQVWDQW
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- ',5(&7256$1'(;(&87,9(2)),&(562)7+(5(*,675$17

 'LUHFWRUV $OO)LOLSLQR&LWL]HQV 

1DPH
$JH
7HUP
)UHG-(OL]DOGH

XSWRSUHVHQW
5XSHUWR61LFGDR-U

XSWRSUHVHQW
(GXDUGR*&RUGRYD

XSWRSUHVHQW
-XOLR0DQXHO30DFXMD

XSWRSUHVHQW

6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

1DPH
7KDODVVD*(OL]DOGH
*HRUJH7*RGXFR 
5XGROI6WHYH(-XODUEDO
*DU\&+XDQJ 

     




$JH





7HUP
XSWRSUHVHQW
XSWRSUHVHQW
XSWRSUHVHQW
XSWRSUHVHQW

%XVLQHVV([SHULHQFHIRUWKHODVW)LYH  \HDUV

)UHG-(OL]DOGHKDVEHHQVHUYLQJDV'LUHFWRU&KDLUPDQRIWKH&RPSDQ\VLQFH+HLV
DOVR FXUUHQWO\ VHUYLQJ DV &KDLUPDQ3UHVLGHQW RI 3KLOLSSLQH ,QWHUQDWLRQDO &RUSRUDWLRQ
3KLOFLWH  6WDU 3DUNV &RUSRUDWLRQ 6WDU &LW\  (OL]DOGH +ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ (+&  DQG
1RUWKHUQ&DSL]$JUR,QGXVWULDO'HYHORSPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ 1RUFDLF +HKDVDOVRVHUYHGDV
SDVW &KDLUPDQ3UHVLGHQW RI $VHDQ 6HFWLRQ $VHDQ86 %XVLQHVV &RXQFLO 3KLOLSSLQH
&KDPEHU RI &RPPHUFH  ,QGXVWU\ &RQIHGHUDWLRQ RI $VLDQ &KDPEHUV RI &RPPHUFH DQG
,QGXVWU\ HWF ,Q  KH ZDV DSSRLQWHG DV PHPEHU RI WKH %RUDFD\ (PLQHQW 3HUVRQV
*URXS +H JUDGXDWHG 0DJQD &XP /DXGH IURP +DUYDUG 8QLYHUVLW\ ZLWK D GHJUHH RI
%DFKHORURI$UWV0DMRULQ6RFLDO5HODWLRQV

5XSHUWR61LFGDR-ULVWKHFXUUHQW3UHVLGHQWRIWKH&RPSDQ\+HKDVEHHQVHUYLQJDV
'LUHFWRU RI WKH &RPSDQ\ VLQFH  +H LV DOVR VHUYLQJ DV 'LUHFWRU RI 3KLOFLWH 6WDU &LW\
(+&DQG&XOWXUDO&HQWHURIWKH3KLOLSSLQHV+HLVWKH&KDLUPDQRI.%3DQGDPHPEHURI
WKH)LQDQFLDO([HFXWLYHV,QVWLWXWHRIWKH3KLOLSSLQHV3KLOLSSLQH&KDPEHURI&RPPHUFHDQG
,QGXVWU\ DQG WKH 0DNDWL %XVLQHVV &OXE +H REWDLQHG KLV 0DVWHU·V LQ %XVLQHVV
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ IURP $VLDQ ,QVWLWXWH RI 0DQDJHPHQW DQG KLV $%+RQRUV 0DMRU LQ 0DWK 
0DJQD&XP/DXGHIURP'H/D6DOOH&ROOHJH

(GXDUGR*&RUGRYDKDVEHHQD'LUHFWRURIWKHFRPSDQ\VLQFHDQGLVFXUUHQWO\WKH
693&)2 RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG (+& +H LV DOVR &KDLUPDQ3UHVLGHQW RI RXU DIILOLDWH
3KLOLSSLQH %URDGFDVWLQJ &RUSRUDWLRQ 3%&  +H LV DPHPEHU RI WKH 3KLOLSSLQH ,QVWLWXWH RI
&HUWLILHG3XEOLF$FFRXQWDQWV 3,&3$ +HLVD&HUWLILHG3XEOLF$FFRXQWDQWDQGREWDLQHGKLV
0DVWHU·V LQ %XVLQHVV $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ZLWK KRQRUV IURP 8QLYHUVLW\ RI 6W /D 6DOOH DQG KLV
EDFKHORU·VGHJUHHLQEXVLQHVVDGPLQLVWUDWLRQIURP8QLYHUVLW\RIWKH(DVW

-XOLR0DQXHO30DFXMDLV(937UHDVXUHURIWKH&RPSDQ\ZKLFKKHMRLQHGLQ+HLV
WKH &KLHI ,QIRUPDWLRQ 2IILFHU UHJLVWHUHG ZLWK WKH 3KLOLSSLQH 6WRFN ([FKDQJH +H LV DOVR D
'LUHFWRURI(+&DQG6WDU&LW\+HZDVIRUPHUO\SDUWRIWKH7UHDVXU\*URXSRIWKH%DQNRI
WKH3KLOLSSLQH,VODQGV3ULRUWRWKLVKHZDV$FWLQJ'LUHFWRURIWKH$WHQHR&HQWHUIRU6RFLDO
3ROLF\ DQG 3XEOLF $IIDLUV DQG SDUW WLPH IDFXOW\ PHPEHU RI WKH (FRQRPLFV 'HSDUWPHQW
$WHQHRGH0DQLOD8QLYHUVLW\ZKHUHKHILQLVKHGKLV%DFKHORURI$UWV'HJUHHLQ(FRQRPLFV
+RQRUV  LQ  +H FRPSOHWHG KLV SRVWJUDGXDWH VWXGLHV DV D VFKRODU RI WKH %ULWLVK
&RXQFLODWWKH9LFWRULD8QLYHUVLW\RI0DQFKHVWHULQREWDLQLQJDGHJUHHRI0DVWHURI
$UWVLQ(FRQRPLFDQG6RFLDO6WXGLHV 0DMRULQ'HYHORSPHQW6WXGLHV 

-XDQ 0DQXHO (OL]DOGH LV FXUUHQWO\ WKH 932SHUDWLRQV DQG KDV EHHQ FRQQHFWHG ZLWK WKH
&RPSDQ\VLQFHLQYDULRXVFDSDFLWLHV+HKROGVDQ$%0DVV &RPPXQLFDWLRQGHJUHH
IURP0HQOR&ROOHJH0HQOR3DUN&DOLIRUQLD86$

7KDODVVD$GHOD*(OL]DOGHZDVHOHFWHG'LUHFWRURI0DQLOD%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\GXULQJ
WKH ODVW VWRFNKROGHUV· PHHWLQJ RI WKH &RPSDQ\ KHOG RQ 6HSWHPEHU   6KH LV
FXUUHQWO\WKH&KDLUPDQ3UHVLGHQWRI7*(+ROGLQJV&RUSRUDWLRQ


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU

5XGROSK6WHYH(-XODUEDOLVFXUUHQWO\WKH&RUSRUDWH6HFUHWDU\+HLVDOVRWKH93RIWKH
/HJDO DQG 5HJXODWRU\ &RPSOLDQFH *URXS DQG FRQFXUUHQWO\ WKH 6WDWLRQ 0DQDJHU RI WKH
FRPSDQ\·V$0IODJVKLS VWDWLRQ'=5+0DQLOD+HILUVWMRLQHGWKHFRPSDQ\LQ+H
UHVLJQHGLQGLGDVKRUWVWLQWDV93/HJDORI1H[WHO&RPPXQLFDWLRQV3KLOIURP
WR  EHIRUH KH ZHQW LQWR SULYDWH SUDFWLFH DQG ZDV DUHWDLQHG H[WHUQDO FRXQVHO RI WKH
FRPSDQ\ XS WR  +H ZDV UHHQJDJHG RQ D IXOO WLPH EDVLV LQ   $WW\ -XODUEDO
REWDLQHGKLV%DFKHORU·V'HJUHHLQ/DZIURPWKH8QLYHUVLW\RIWKH3KLOLSSLQHV'LOLPDQ4&
LQ  DQG ZDV DGPLWWHG WR WKH %DU WKH IROORZLQJ \HDU  +H DOVR KROGV GHJUHHV LQ
0DQDJHPHQWDQG0DUNHWLQJREWDLQHGIURP6DLQW/RXLV8QLYHUVLW\LQ%DJXLR&LW\

*DU\ & +XDQJ LV DQ LQGHSHQGHQW GLUHFWRU +H LV FXUUHQWO\ WKH 'HDQ RI WKH 6FKRRO RI
%XVLQHVV $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ $FFRXQWDQF\ DQG &XVWRPV $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ RI (PLOLR $JXLQDOGR
&ROOHJH&RQFXUUHQWO\KHLVDOVRWKH3UHVLGHQWRI)LOUHVRXUFH,QF+HREWDLQHGKLV0DVWHU·V
LQ %XVLQHVV 0DQDJHPHQW IURP WKH $VLDQ ,QVWLWXWH RI 0DQDJHPHQW DQG KLV %DFKHORU RI
6FLHQFHLQ,QGXVWULDO(QJLQHHULQJIURPWKH8QLYHUVLW\RIWKH3KLOLSSLQHV+LVSDVWSRVLWLRQV
LQFOXGH 3UHVLGHQW RI *HRQREHO 3KLOLSSLQHV ,QF &RXQWU\ 0DQDJHU RI +HUEDOLIH
,QWHUQDWLRQDO3KLOLSSLQHVDQG*HQHUDO0DQDJHURI*UHDW$PXVHPHQW,QF

*HRUJH7*RGXFRLVDQLQGHSHQGHQWGLUHFWRU$WSUHVHQWKHLVWKH3UHVLGHQWRI+HDOWKODE
,QF D IXOO VHUYLFH GLDJQRVWLFV ODERUDWRU\ DQG PHGLFDO H[DPLQDWLRQ IDFLOLW\ +H ZDV
(93&22 RI 6WDU 3DUNV &RUSRUDWLRQ LQ  +HDOVR VHUYHG DV 9LFH3UHVLGHQW DQG
7UHDVXUHU RI WKH )-( *URXS RI &RPSDQLHV LQ  DQG LWV 'LUHFWRU IRU &RUSRUDWH
3ODQQLQJLQ²+HDOVRVHUYHGDV$FFRXQW2IILFHULQ6ROLGEDQNDQG%RVWRQ%DQN
IURP+HKROGV DQ0%$IURP WKH8QLYHUVLW\RI%ULGJHSRUW&RQQHFWLFXWDQGD
%DFKHORURI6FLHQFHLQ(FRQRPLFVIURPWKH8QLYHUVLW\RIWKH3KLOLSSLQHV

. (;(&87,9(&203(16$7,21

7KH DJJUHJDWH FRPSHQVDWLRQ RI WKH H[HFXWLYHV DQG GLUHFWRUV RI WKH LVVXHU5HJLVWUDQW LV
LQ3LQ3LQ3LQDQG
3 LQ  7KHUH ZHUH QR DGGLWLRQDO DPRXQWV SDLG IRU FRPPLWWHH SDUWLFLSDWLRQ RU
VSHFLDODVVLJQPHQWV

7KHNH\PDQDJHPHQWFRPSHQVDWLRQLVDVIROORZV

1DPH
<HDU
6DODU\
%RQXV
2WKHUV
)UHG-(OL]DOGH




&KDLUPDQ&(2
























-RVH07DUXF-U
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6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU



/ (03/2<0(17&2175$&7:,7+$1(;(&87,9(2)),&(5

7KHUHLVQRHPSOR\PHQWFRQWUDFWH[HFXWHGE\WKHFRPSDQ\DQGWKHDERYHQDPHGH[HFXWLYH
RIILFHUV 1HLWKHU LV WKHUH DQ\ RWKHU DUUDQJHPHQW RU FRPSHQVDWRU\ SODQ PDGH EHWZHHQ WKH
&RPSDQ\DQGWKHQDPHGH[HFXWLYHRIILFHUV

0 6(&85,7<2:1(56+,32)&(57$,1%(1(),&,$/2:1(56$1'0$1$*(0(17

2ZQHUVRIDWOHDVWRIWKH&RPSDQ\·VVHFXULWLHVDVRI'HFHPEHUZHUHDVIROORZV

$PRXQWDQG
1DPHDQG$GGUHVVRI
7LWOHRI
1DWXUHRI
5HFRUG%HQHILFLDO2ZQHUDQG
&LWL]HQVKLS 3HUFHQW
&ODVV
2ZQHUVKLS
5HODWLRQVKLSZLWK,VVXHU
5RU% 
&RPPRQ (OL]DOGH+ROGLQJV&RUSRUDWLRQ QG

)ORRU0%&%OGJ&&3&RPSOH[
)LOLSLQR

5%
5R[DV%RXOHYDUG3DVD\&LW\
00 PDMRUVWRFNKROGHU 

(OL]DOGH/DQG,QF QG)ORRU0%&
%OGJ&&3&RPSOH[5R[DV

)LOLSLQR

%RXOHYDUG3DVD\&LW\00 PDMRU
5%
VWRFNKROGHU 

5RPXOR0DEDQWD%XHQDYHQWXUD
6D\RF GHORV$QJHOHV/DZ
WK
2IILFHV  )ORRU&LWLEDQN7RZHU 
)LOLSLQR

3DVHRGH5R[DV0DNDWL&LW\
5
00 7UXVW)XQGIRUWKH(OL]DOGH
&KLOGUHQ 

&HEX%URDGFDVWLQJ&RPSDQ\ QG
)ORRU0%&%OGJ&&3&RPSOH[

)LOLSLQR

5%
5R[DV%RXOHYDUG3DVD\&LW\00
$IILOLDWH%URDGFDVW&RPSDQ\ 

$4*&RUSRUDWLRQ&KLQR5RFHV

)LOLSLQR

$YHQXH0DNDWL&LW\
5%

(OL]DOGH +ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ LV RZQHG E\ YDULRXV WUXVW IXQGV WKDW KDYH H[HFXWHG YRWLQJ
WUXVWV LQ IDYRU RI WKH &KDLUPDQ )UHG - (OL]DOGH (OL]DOGH /DQG ,QF DQG &HEX %URDGFDVWLQJ
&RPSDQ\ DUH  RZQHG VXEVLGLDULHV RI (OL]DOGH +ROGLQJV &RUSRUDWLRQ 0U (GXDUGR *
&RUGRYDDQG$WW\+DGULDQ9$UUR\R GHFHDVHG DUHWKHSHUVRQVGHVLJQDWHGWRH[HUFLVHYRWLQJ
SRZHURYHUWKHVKDUHVRI(/,DQG&%&UHVSHFWLYHO\LQWKHUHJLVWUDQW
7KH 5RPXOR 0DEDQWD HW DO 7UXVW )XQG LV UHSUHVHQWHG E\ LWV GHVLJQDWHG UHSUHVHQWDWLYH LQ
WKHSHUVRQRI$WW\5H\QDOGR**HURQLPR




6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU
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1XPEHU
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RI6KDUHV
,26KDUHV
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'LUHFW

















'LUHFW





6XEWRWDO



7+$/$66$*(/,=$/'(
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GWRWRWDO

1XPEHU
RI6KDUHV

,26KDUHV

$
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7KHUHDUHQRDUUDQJHPHQWVWKDWPD\UHVXOWLQDFKDQJHLQFRQWURORIWKH&RPSDQ\

3 &(57$,15(/$7,216+,36$1'5(/$7('75$16$&7,216

)DPLO\5HODWLRQVKLSV

Ͳ 0U -XDQ 0DQXHO (OL]DOGH 932SHUDWLRQV DQG 'LUHFWRU LV WKH VRQ RI WKH
&KDLUPDQ'LUHFWRU0U)UHG-(OL]DOGH
Ͳ 0V7KDODVVD$GHOD(OL]DOGH'LUHFWRULVWKHGDXJKWHURIWKH&KDLUPDQ'LUHFWRU0U)UHG-
(OL]DOGH
Ͳ 0U -XOLR 0DQXHO 3 0DFXMD (937UHDVXUHU  'LUHFWRU LV WKH EURWKHULQODZ RI WKH
&KDLUPDQ'LUHFWRU0U)UHG-(OL]DOGH

2WKHUWKDQWKHDERYHWKHUHDUHQRRWKHUIDPLO\UHODWLRQVKLSVNQRZQWRWKHUHJLVWUDQW

,QYROYHPHQWRI'LUHFWRUVDQG2IILFHUVLQ&HUWDLQ/HJDO3URFHHGLQJV

1RQH RI WKH GLUHFWRUV DQG RIILFHUV ZDV LQYROYHG LQWKH SDVW ILYH   \HDUV LQ DQ\ EDQNUXSWF\
SURFHHGLQJ1HLWKHUKDYHWKH\EHHQFRQYLFWHGE\ILQDOMXGJPHQWLQ DQ\FULPLQDO SURFHHGLQJ
RUEHHQVXEMHFWWR DQ\RUGHUMXGJPHQWRUGHFUHHRI FRPSHWHQW MXULVGLFWLRQSHUPDQHQWO\RU
WHPSRUDULO\HQMRLQLQJEDUULQJVXVSHQGLQJRURWKHUZLVHOLPLWLQJWKHLULQYROYHPHQWLQDQ\W\SH
RIEXVLQHVVQRUIRXQGLQDFWLRQE\DQ\FRXUWRUDGPLQLVWUDWLYHERGLHVWRKDYHYLRODWHGDQ\ODZ
7KH&RPSDQ\KDVQRSHQGLQJPDWHULDOOHJDOSURFHHGLQJVIRUDQGDJDLQVWLW

6LJQLILFDQW(PSOR\HH

7KHUH LV QR SHUVRQ ZKR LV QRW DQ H[HFXWLYH RIILFHUEXW ZKR LV H[SHFWHG E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ WR
PDNHDVLJQLILFDQWFRQWULEXWLRQWRWKHEXVLQHVV

2WKHU5HODWHG3DUW\7UDQVDFWLRQV

5HIHUWR1RWHRIDXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


6(&)RUP$)RUWKH\HDU


3$57,9²&25325$7(*29(51$1&(

(YDOXDWLRQ6\VWHP

7KH&RPSDQ\WKURXJKLWV &RPSOLDQFH2IILFHU HYDOXDWHVWKH OHYHORI FRPSOLDQFH RIWKH%2'
DQG WRSOHYHO PDQDJHPHQW ZLWK WKH 0DQXDO RI &RUSRUDWH *RYHUQDQFH VHPLDQQXDOO\ $V RI
'HFHPEHU   WKH PHPEHUV RI WKH $XGLW 1RPLQDWLQJ DQG &RPSHQVDWLRQ &RPPLWWHHV
KDYH EHHQ DSSRLQWHG DQG ZLOO EH UHFRPPHQGHG IRU UHDSSRLQWPHQW RQFH WKH QHZ ERDUG LV
FRQVWLWXWHG7KHUHZHUHQRGHYLDWLRQVIURPWKH&RPSDQ\·V0DQXDORI&RUSRUDWH*RYHUQDQFH
QRWHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
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MANILA BROADCASTING COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
Manila Broadcasting Company (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on
September 30, 1947. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of radio broadcasting.
The registered office address of the Company is MBC Building, V. Sotto Street, CCP Complex,
Pasay City. On May 20, 1971, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
approved the amendment of the Companys Articles of Incorporation to extend its corporate term
for another period of 50 years from and after June 11, 1971.
The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors (BOD) on
April 4, 2014.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared using the historical cost convention,
except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, which have been measured at fair value, and
land, which is carried at revalued amount.
The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the Company presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of
the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the financial statements. An additional
statement of financial position as at January 1, 2012 is presented in these financial statements due
to retrospective application of an accounting policy (see Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures).
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (Peso), which is the Companys
functional and presentation currency. Amounts are rounded to the nearest Peso unless otherwise
indicated.
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following new standards, amendments to existing standards and Philippine
Interpretation based on the interpretation of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which became effective on January 1, 2013. Except as otherwise indicated,
the adoption of the following new standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation
did not have any impact on the Companys financial position or performance.
x

Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and
related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. These disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement

*SGVFS004016*

-2-

or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32.
The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a. the gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b. the amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
c. the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d. the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i. amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e. the net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.
The amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Companys financial
position or performance.
x

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in SIC 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose
Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including
special purpose entities and will require management to exercise significant judgment to
determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a
parent compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27. The Company reassessed
whether it has control over its investee companies and determined that it does not meet all the
criteria for control.

x

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13,
Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the
option to account for jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation. Instead,
jointly controlled entities that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for
using the equity method.

x

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, includes all of the disclosures that were
previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the
disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 28. These disclosures relate to
an entitys interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities.

x

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011), has been limited to accounting
for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in the separate financial statements
as a consequence of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS 12.

x

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011), has been renamed,
as a consequence of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12 and describes the application of the equity
method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.

x

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurement and eliminates inconsistencies dispersed in various existing PFRS. It does not
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to
measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
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As a result of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Company reassessed its policies for measuring fair
values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value
measurement of liabilities. The application of PFRS did not have a material impact on the fair
value measurement of the Company. Additional disclosures where required, are provided in
the individual notes relating to the assets whose fair values where determined. The fair value
hierarchy is provided in Note 22 to the financial statements.
x

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income, change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive
income (OCI). Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point
in time would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Companys
financial position or performance.

x

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, require all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognized in OCI and unvested past service costs previously recognized over the average
vesting period to be recognized immediately in profit or loss when incurred for defined benefit
plans. Prior to adoption of the revised standard, the Company recognized actuarial gains and
losses as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses
for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the
higher of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan
assets. Unvested past service costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average vesting period until the benefits become vested. Upon adoption of the revised
standard, the Company changed its accounting policy to recognize all actuarial gains and
losses in OCI and all past service costs in profit or loss in the period they occur.
In addition, the Revised PAS 19 replaced the interest cost and expected return on plan assets
with the concept of net interest on defined benefit liability or asset, which is calculated by
multiplying the net defined benefit liability or asset by the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation, each as at the beginning of the annual period.
The opening statement of financial position of the earliest comparative period presented
(January 1, 2012) and the comparative figures have been restated accordingly. The effects of
the restrospective application on the financial statements are as follows:

Statements of financial position
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued retirement benefits
Deferred income tax liabilities - net
Retained earnings
Remeasurements on accrued retirement
benefits

As at
December 31,
2013*

As at
December 31,
2012

As at
January 1,
2012

(P
=23,051,750)
6,915,525
4,965,091

(P
=8,464,518)
2,539,355
4,646,470

(P
=6,726,529)
2,017,959
4,708,570

11,171,134

1,278,693



* Impact as at December 31, 2013 are for disclosure purposes only as required by
PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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Statements of comprehensive income
Increase (decrease):
Net retirement benefits cost
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of
deferred income tax

2013*

2012

2011

(P
=455,173)
136,552
318,621

=
P88,715
(26,615)
(62,100)

(P
=583,167)
174,950
408,217

9,892,441

1,278,693



* Impact for the year ended December 31, 2013 are for disclosure purposes only as required by
PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The transition did not have a significant impact on the statements of cash flows and earnings
per share for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. Remeasurements on accrued
retirement benefits was closed to retained earnings at transition date. Subsequent to January 1,
2012, remeasurements on accrued retirement benefits is separately presented in equity. Net
interest cost is still presented as part of Personnel costs under operating expenses.
The Revised PAS 19 also requires more extensive disclosures which are presented in Note 17
to the financial statements.
x

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine, applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity, during the
production phase of the mine and addresses the accounting for the benefit from the stripping
activity. This new interpretation is not relevant to the Company as it is not involved in any
mining activities.

x

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2009 to 2011 cycle), contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRS.
x

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs, clarifies that, upon adoption of
PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs in accordance with its previous generally
accepted accounting principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the amount
previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial position at the date of
transition. Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are recognized in
accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment does not apply to the
Company as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.

x

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the Requirements for
Comparative Information, clarifies the requirements for comparative information that are
disclosed voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an
accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial
statements. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes to the
financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the
minimum required comparative period. The additional comparative period does not need
to contain a complete set of financial statements. On the other hand, supporting notes for
the third statement of financial position (which are mandatory when there is a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items in the financial statements) are not required. The amendments
affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Companys financial position or
performance.
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PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment, clarifies
that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be recognized as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment and should be recognized as inventory, if otherwise.

x

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax Effect of Distribution to Holders of
Equity Instruments, clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with
PAS 12.

x

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim Financial Reporting and Segment
Information for Total Assets and Liabilities, clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for
a particular reportable segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change from
the amount disclosed in the entitys previous annual financial statements for that
reportable segment. The amendment affects disclosures only and had no impact on the
Companys financial position or performance.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations, and Amendments to
Existing Standards Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2013
The standards, amendments and interpretations, which have been issued but are not yet effective
as at December 31, 2013 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does
not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact on
its financial position or performance. The relevant disclosures will be included in the notes to the
financial statements when these become effective.
Effective in 2014
x

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10 and 11 and PAS 27), provide an exception to
the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity
under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). It is not expected that these
amendments will be relevant to the Company as it will not qualify as an investment entity
under PFRS 10.

x

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, clarifies the meaning of currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off and
also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation only and will have no impact on the
Companys financial position or performance.

x

Amendments to PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Nonfinancial Assets, remove the unintended consequence of PFRS 13 on the disclosures
required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which impairment loss has been recognized
or reversed during the period. These amendments are effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided
PFRS 13 is applied. The Company did not early adopt the amendments. These amendments
will affect disclosures only and will have no impact on the Companys financial position or
performance.
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PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting, provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The
amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Companys financial position or
performance.

x

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies, clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a
levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs.
For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that
no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. The
Company does not expect that the interpretation will have a material financial impact on its
future financial statements.

Effective in 2015
x

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions,
apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. Contributions
that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions to current
service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the remeasurements of the net defined
benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service. Contributions that are discretionary
shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plans. The amendments will not have any significant impact on the
financial statements of the Company as its retirement plan is noncontributory.

x

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010 to 2012 cycle), contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
x

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition, revised the definitions of
vesting condition and market condition, and added the definitions of performance
condition and service condition to clarify various issues. This amendment shall be
prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on
or after July 1, 2014. This amendment does not apply to the Company as it currently has
no share-based payments.

x

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination, clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in accordance
with PAS 32. Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently
measured at FVPL whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9 (or PAS 39, if
PFRS 9 is not yet adopted). The amendment shall be prospectively applied to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014. The Company
shall consider this amendment for future business combinations.

x

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Reportable Segments Assets to the Entitys Assets, requires entities to
disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating two or more operating
segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the operating segments that
have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been assessed in
determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic
characteristics. The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide reconciliations of
the total of the reportable segments assets to the entitys assets if such amounts are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker. These amendments are effective
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for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The
amendments will affect disclosures only and will not have an impact on the Companys
financial position or performance.
x

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables, clarifies that
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at invoice
amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

x

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Revaluation Method - Proportionate
Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation, clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the
revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the
date of revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any
accumulated impairment losses.
b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or
after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding
annual period. The amendment will have no impact on the Companys financial position
or performance.

x

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel, clarifies that an entity
is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or any member of a group for
which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity
or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The amendments also clarify that a
reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity (also
referred to as management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or
payable by the management entity to its employees or directors. The reporting entity is
required to disclose the amounts incurred for the key management personnel services
provided by a separate management entity. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The
amendments will affect disclosures only and will have no impact on the Companys
financial position or performance.

x

PAS 38, Intangible Assets: Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Amortization, clarifies that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the
carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall
be treated in one of the following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the
date of revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any
accumulated impairment losses.
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b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset.
The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount
accounted for in accordance with the standard.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.
These amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning
on or after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately
preceding annual period. The amendments will have no impact on the Companys
financial position or performance.
x

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011 to 2013 cycle), contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
x

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
Effective PFRS, clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a
new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application, provided either
standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entitys first PFRS
financial statements. This amendment is not applicable to the Company as it is not a firsttime adopter of PFRS.

x

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements, clarifies that
PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

x

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception, clarifies that the portfolio
exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and other
contracts. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment will have no impact on the
Companys financial position or performance.

x

PAS 40, Investment Property, clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40
when classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The
amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business
combination within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of
PFRS 3. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014
and is applied prospectively. The amendment will have no significant impact on the
Companys financial position or performance.

Effectivity date to be determined
x

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, as issued, reflects the first
and third phases of the project to replace PAS 39 and applies to the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hedge accounting, respectively. Work on
the second phase, which relate to impairment of financial instruments, and the limited
amendments to the classification and measurement model is still ongoing, with a view to
replace PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value
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at initial recognition. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Companys financial assets, but will potentially have no
impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules based hedge accounting model of PAS 39
with a more principles-based approach. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for
hedge accounting.
PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and
impairment methodology. The Company will not adopt the standard before the completion of
the limited amendments and the second phase of the project.
x

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, covers
accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of
real estate directly or through subcontractors. This Interpretation requires that revenue on
construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except when such contract
qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts,
or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. The Philippine SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred
the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final
Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed. The
adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the
financial statements of the Company.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as AFS financial assets, and non-financial
assets such as property and equipment at revalued amount and investment properties, at fair value
at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
x
x

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participants ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
x
x
x

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liabilities and the level
of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is disclosed in Note 22 to the financial
statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and cash in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of up to
three months and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable
transaction costs, if any, are included in the initial measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, except for any financial instrument measured at FVPL. The Company recognizes a
financial asset or financial liability in the statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits.
Financial instruments are classified as either financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, or other financial
liabilities, as appropriate.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates this designation at each financial
year-end.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Companys financial instruments include loans and
receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilities.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position. Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method. Loans and
receivables are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the statement of
financial position date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
Included under this category are the Companys cash in banks, short-term investments, receivables
and due from affiliates as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those nonderivative financial assets that are designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories. Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity
requirements or changes in market conditions. Included under this category are the Companys
quoted and unquoted equity investments as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
After initial recognition, quoted AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or
losses recognized as a separate component of equity and as OCI until the investment is
derecognized or until the investment is determined to be impaired. Unquoted FS financial assets,
on the other hand, are carried at cost, net of impairment, until the investment is derecognized.
These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to dispose such
assets within 12 months from balance sheet date.
Other financial liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are neither held for trading nor designated as at
FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings.
The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest rate method of
amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable
transaction costs.
Included under this category are the Companys accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to
affiliates, dividends payable, talent fees and commissions payable as of December 31, 2013 and
2012.
Day 1 Difference
When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 difference) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data used is not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference amount.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
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recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities
are presented gross in the statement of financial position.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets)
is derecognized when:
x
x
x

the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement; or
the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from the financial asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from a financial asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset nor transferred
control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Companys
continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or has expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit
or loss.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets carried at amortized cost
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
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exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial
assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
shall be recognized in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans, together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance for impairment losses account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at reversal date.
In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the
Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Receivables together with the related allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.
AFS financial assets
For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value after
impairment are recognized as OCI.
Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in, first-out
method) and net realizable value. Cost includes the invoice price and related charges such as
freight, insurance, and taxes, among others. Net realizable value is the current replacement cost.
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Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any impairment in value.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of property and equipment. When
assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any
impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts. Any gain or loss resulting from the
disposal is included in profit or loss.
Land is stated at revalued amount based on the fair market value of the property determined by an
independent firm of appraisers as of December 31, 2013. The increase in the valuation of land,
net of deferred income tax liability, is credited to Revaluation increment on land in the
statement of financial position and recognized as OCI. Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the
revaluation increment realized in respect of the previous valuation will be released from the
revaluation increment in OCI directly to retained earnings. Decreases that offset previous
increases in respect of the same property are charged against the revaluation increment. All other
decreases are charged against current operations.
Depreciation commences when an asset is in its location and condition and capable of being
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Broadcasting and transmission equipment
Building
Furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment

Years
8-11
7-17
5
4

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or life of the building and
improvements ranging from seven to seventeen years, whichever is shorter.
Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost, including
cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such
time that the relevant assets are completed and ready for operational use.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of
property and equipment.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use.
Investment Properties
Investment properties, except land, are measured at cost, including transaction costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Land is carried at cost less any
impairment in value. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing
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investment property at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.
Building and other property classified as investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten years and eight years, respectively.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of frequency and intellectual property rights. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
The Companys intangible assets are assessed as finite and are amortized over the estimated useful
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that these may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized
in profit or loss.
Amortization commences when the intangible asset is acquired and is capable of being owned and
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Frequency
Intellectual property rights

Years
13
3

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the fair value of the acquirees net identifiable assets. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying values of property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other
nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing is required, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amounts, the assets or the cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.
The recoverable amount of the assets is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-
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use. The fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Any impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment for goodwill is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. An impairment loss in recognized immediately in profit or loss when the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its recoverable amount. Impairment losses relating
to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
Capital Stock
Capital stock is the portion of the paid in capital representing the total par value of the shares
issued.
Additional Paid-in Capital
Additional paid-in capital represents the amount paid in excess of the par value of the shares
issued. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss, net of any dividend
declaration and other capital adjustments.
OCI
OCI comprises items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss in accordance
with PFRS. The Companys OCI includes net changes in fair values of AFS financial assets,
revaluation increment on land carried at revalued amount and remeasurement gains (losses) on
accrued retirement benefits.
Treasury Stock
Treasury stocks are shares of the Company which are reacquired and are measured at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Companys own equity instrument.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
or the services have been rendered to the customer, the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, regardless of when
the amount is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, excluding discounts and rebates. The following specific criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognized:
Broadcasting fees are recognized as income when the program is broadcasted or the advertisement
is aired.
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Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is recognized on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues.
Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Cost of services and operating expenses are recognized when incurred. They are measured at the
fair value of the consideration paid or payable.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:
x where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable; and
x receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.
The net amount of input VAT is presented under Prepaid expenses and other current assets
while the net amount of output VAT is presented under Accounts payable and accrued expenses.
Retirement Benefits
Accrued retirement benefits, as presented in the statement of financial position, is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, adjusted for the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. Retirement benefits costs consist of service costs, net interest on the
net defined benefit liability or asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on nonroutine settlements are recognized in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by an independent
qualified actuary.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustee bank. Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. The fair
value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the
fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal
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date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the
related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
The Companys right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
a qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Capitalization of
borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and
expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded.
Income Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or
loss is recognized under OCI in equity.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting date.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set-off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
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dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or,
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d above, and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario b.
Company as lessor
Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
Company as lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year and adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
common shares, if any.
In determining both the basic and the diluted earnings per share, the effect of stock dividends, if
any, is accounted for retroactively.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies (i.e., currencies other than the Peso) are initially recorded using
the functional currency exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the functional currency closing
exchange rate at the end of reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
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economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected
in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial statements.
Events after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Companys position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the
financial statements. The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements
are based upon managements evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances that are believed to
be reasonable as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from such
estimates.
The judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgment
In the process of applying the Companys accounting policies, management has made the
following judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
Determination of the Companys functional currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company, the
functional currency has been determined to be the Peso. It is the currency that mainly influences
the sale of services and the costs of providing these services.
Assessment of impairment of noncurrent nonfinancial assets
The Company assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the
Company considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
a. significant adverse changes in the technological, market, or economic environment in which
the Company operates;
b. significant decrease in the market value of an asset;
c. significant increase in the discount rate used for the value-in-use calculations;
d. evidence of obsolescence and physical damage;
e. significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used or expected to be used;
f. plans to restructure or discontinue an operation; and,
g. evidence is available from internal reporting that the economic performance of an asset is, or
will be, worse than expected.
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Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and value-in-use.
The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arms length
transaction while value-in-use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable
amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount represents the value-in-use, determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets. The estimated
cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience and business plans and
are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
For goodwill, the Company determines whether it is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating value-in-use requires management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Based on managements evaluation, no impairment loss needs to be recognized on the Companys
property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, goodwill, and other noncurrent
assets in 2013, 2012 and 2011. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the carrying values of the
Companys noncurrent nonfinancial assets amounted to =
P461.4 million and P
=468.5 million,
respectively (see Notes 8, 9 and 10).
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The Company has a lease agreement with a third party covering its satellite communications
services and with a related party for its office space. The Company has determined that the risks
and rewards of ownership of the underlying properties are retained by the lessors since the lease
does not transfer ownership of the assets to the Company, the lease term is not for the major part
of the economic life of the assets and the Company has no option to purchase the assets at the end
of the lease agreements. Accordingly, the leases were accounted for as operating leases and were
determined that these leases shall be recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(see Note 19).
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor
The Company has arrangements with various lessees covering the building units it offers for lease,
the ownership over which was determined to have been retained by the Company. Accordingly,
these leases were accounted for as operating leases.
Classification of financial instruments
The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition, as a
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the statement of financial position. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
Companys total financial assets amounted to =
P564.4 million and P
=476.3 million, respectively,
while its total financial liabilities amounted to =
P220.0 million and =
P185.4 million, respectively.
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Estimations
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Estimation of allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company maintains allowance for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to provide
for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on
the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of accounts. These factors include, but are not
limited to, the length of the Companys relationship with the client, the clients payment behavior
and known market factors.
In addition to specific allowance against individually significant receivables, the Company also
makes a collective impairment testing which takes into consideration the customers ability to pay,
age of receivables, past collection experiences and other factors that may affect collectibility.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to =
P54.5 million
and =
P58.5 million, respectively. Receivables, net of related allowance, amounted to
=
P318.8 million and =
P309.8 million of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 6).
Estimation of allowance for inventory obsolescence
Provisions are made for items of inventory which are specifically identified to be obsolete. The
amount of estimate is based on a number of factors which include, among others, the age and
status of inventories and the Companys experience.
Allowance for inventory obsolescence amounted to =
P1.5 million as of December 31, 2013 and
2012. Materials and supplies, net of related provision for inventory obsolescence, amounted to
=
P7.3 million and =
P12.4 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets
The Company estimated the useful lives of its property and equipment, depreciable investment
properties, and intangible assets based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The Company annually reviews the estimated useful lives of property and
equipment, depreciable investment properties, and intangible assets based on factors that include
asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental changes and
anticipated use of the assets. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the carrying value of depreciable property and equipment
amounted to =
P95.0 million and =
P46.2 million, respectively. The net carrying value of depreciable
investment properties amounted to P
=13.9 million and =
P22.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Net intangible assets amounted to =
P91.6 million and =
P103.4 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Total depreciation and amortization relating to
property and equipment, investment properties, and intangible assets charged to operations
amounted to =
P47.7 million, =
P42.1 million and =
P46.1 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
(see Notes 8, 9, 10 and 15).
Recognition of deferred income tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilized.
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Based on managements evaluation, there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which
the deferred income tax assets can be applied. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, recognized
deferred income tax assets amounted to =
P25.6 million and =
P30.0 million, respectively
(see Note 18).
Assessment of impairment of AFS financial assets
The Company performs its impairment analysis of AFS financial assets with quoted market prices
by considering whether the investment incurs significant or prolonged decline in fair value. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Company performs
its impairment analysis of AFS financial assets with no quoted bid prices by considering changes
in the issuers industry and sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in
technology, and other factors that affect the recoverability of the Companys investments. Based
on managements assessment, impairment loss was recognized on unquoted AFS financial assets
amounting to =
P0.5 million in 2011. No impairment loss on unquoted AFS financial asset was
recognized in 2013 and 2012. Management has determined that no impairment loss needs to be
recognized on the Companys quoted AFS financial assets in 2013, 2012 and 2011.
The carrying value of AFS financial assets amounted to =
P25.7 million and =
P25.6 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 7).
Assessment of impairment of goodwill
The Company performs impairment testing of its goodwill every December of each year. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Value-in-use is estimated by making an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and to apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The recoverable amount of the Companys goodwill has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using a five-year cash flow projection approved by
management. The Company has determined that the goodwill is not impaired. The carrying
amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P
=38.0 million (see Note 10).
Estimation of retirement benefits cost and liability
The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost is dependent on assumptions used
by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 17 and
include among others, discount rates which are determined by using risk-free interest rate of
government bonds consistent with the estimated term of the obligation and salary increase rates.
In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the Companys assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized
expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. While the Company believes that the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement benefits obligation.
Accrued retirement benefits amounted to =
P30.1 million, P
=45.0 million and =
P41.3 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and January 1, 2012, respectively (see Note 17).
Provisions
The Company provides for present obligations (legal or constructive) where it is probable that
there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that will be required to settle
said obligations. An estimate of the provision is based on known information at the end of the
reporting date, net of any estimated amount that may be reimbursed to the Company. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pretax rate that reflects
the risks specific to the liability. The amount of provision is being reassessed at least on an annual
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basis to consider new relevant information. There were no provisions recognized as of
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (see Note 24).

4. Segment Information
The Company is organized into only one operating division, radio broadcasting, which is its
primary activity. The Company has six programming formats, namely DZRH and Aksyon
Radyo stations, Love Radio, YES FM, Hot-FM, Radyo Natin, and Easy Rock. For management
purposes, the Company considers the entire business as one segment. Management monitors the
operating results of the business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.
Broadcasting fee, net income, total assets and total liabilities as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are the same as reported elsewhere in the accompanying
financial statements.

Broadcasting fee
Net income
Total assets
Total liabilities

2013
P
=912,752,174
99,202,686
1,034,273,641
325,670,570

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=788,823,015
P
87,427,285
962,932,529
297,903,607

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=756,600,651
P
61,272,065
916,020,032
289,107,560

The Company has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer accounting for
more than 10% or more of the broadcasting fee. All noncurrent assets of the Company are located
in the Philippines.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments

2013
P
=65,769,372
29,093,584
P
=94,862,956

2012
=115,857,975
P
25,629,166
=141,487,141
P

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
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6. Receivables

Trade
Advances to stations (Note 12)
Others
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

2013
P
=346,176,956
17,676,071
9,393,386
373,246,413
54,487,481
P
=318,758,932

2012
=335,021,540
P
22,632,278
10,612,172
368,265,990
58,481,956
=309,784,034
P

Trade receivables and advances to stations are noninterest-bearing and have credit terms of
approximately 90 days.
A reconciliation of the allowance for doubtful accounts by class is as follows:

December 31, 2011
Provisions (reversal) (Note 15)
December 31, 2012
Reversal (Note 15)
December 31, 2013

Trade
P
=54,412,325
1,646,321
56,058,646
(2,806,469)
P
=53,252,177

Advances to
stations
P
=379,906

379,906

P
=379,906

Trade
P
=
53,252,177
P
=53,252,177

Advances to
stations
P
=101,514
278,392
P
=379,906

Trade
=
P
56,058,646
=
P56,058,646

Advances to
stations
=
P101,514
278,392
=
P379,906

Others
P
=3,559,010
(1,515,606)
2,043,404
(1,188,006)
P
=855,398

Total
P
=58,351,241
130,715
58,481,956
(3,994,475)
P
=54,487,481

Others
P
=
855,398
P
=855,398

Total
P
=101,514
54,385,967
P
=54,487,481

Others
=
P1,371,997
671,407
=
P2,043,404

Total
=
P1,473,511
57,008,445
=
P58,481,956

2013

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

2012

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

7. Available-for-sale Financial Assets
The carrying value of AFS financial assets as of December 31 follows:
Unquoted
Less allowance for impairment losses
Quoted

2013
P
=25,999,910
455,275
25,544,635
120,000
P
=25,664,635

2012
=25,999,910
P
455,275
25,544,635
90,000
=25,634,635
P

The fair value of the quoted shares of stock is determined based on quoted market price
(see Notes 21 and 22). As of December 31, 2013, the Company has no intention to dispose the
unquoted shares of stock primarily composed of investment in Star Parks Corporation, a related
party. These unquoted shares of stock are carried and presented at cost less impairment losses.
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Rollforward analysis of AFS financial assets follows:
2013
P
=25,634,635
30,000
P
=25,664,635

Balance at January 1
Unrealized fair value gain
Balance at December 31

2012
=25,634,635
P

=25,634,635
P

The movement of reserve for fluctuation in AFS financial assets follows:
2013
P
=60,000
30,000
P
=90,000

Balance at January 1
Fair value gain recognized in OCI
Balance at December 31

2012
=60,000
P

=60,000
P

8. Property and Equipment
a. Property and equipment carried at cost consists of:
2013
Broadcasting
Building and
and
Leasehold Transmission Furniture and Transportation
Equipment
Improvements
Equipment
Equipment
Cost
Beginning balances
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
Ending balances
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances
Depreciation and
amortization (Note 15)
Disposals
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Construction
In Progress
P
= 55,988,800
22,847,979

(72,948,009)
5,888,770

Total

P
= 131,377,892


10,559,232
141,937,124

P
= 361,730,095
107,924

62,388,777
424,226,796

P
= 94,778,726



94,778,726

P
= 40,465,428
3,576,686
(3,545,455)

40,496,659

117,212,979

337,373,291

93,529,656

34,026,796



582,142,722

9,285,195

126,498,174
P
= 15,438,950

15,281,275

352,654,566
P
= 71,572,230

704,105

94,233,761
P
= 544,965

2,552,479
(3,545,455)
33,033,820
P
= 7,462,839



27,823,054
(3,545,455)
606,420,321
P
= 100,907,754

Building and
Leasehold
Improvements

Broadcasting
and
Transmission
Equipment

Furniture and
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Construction
In Progress

=
P131,377,892

131,377,892

=
P354,634,894
7,095,201
361,730,095

=
P94,684,131
94,595
94,778,726

=
P34,932,832
5,532,596
40,465,428

=
P6,404,030
49,584,770
55,988,800

=
P622,033,779
62,307,162
684,340,941

108,488,417

326,412,499

92,610,039

32,383,674



559,894,629

8,724,562
117,212,979
=
P14,164,913

10,960,792
337,373,291
=
P24,356,804

919,617
93,529,656
=
P1,249,070

1,643,122
34,026,796
=
P6,438,632



=
P55,988,800

22,248,093
582,142,722
=
P102,198,219


P
= 5,888,770

P
= 684,340,941
26,532,589
(3,545,455)

707,328,075

2012

Cost
Beginning balances
Additions
Ending balances
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances
Depreciation and
amortization (Note 15)
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Total

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, fully depreciated property and equipment with cost
totaling =
P576.2 million and =
P410.7 million, respectively, are still used in operations.
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b. Land at revalued amount as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 consists of:
2013
P
=10,066,094
157,114,606
P
=167,180,700

Cost
Appraisal increase

2012
P6,266,094
=
147,211,806
=153,477,900
P

The Company acquired a parcel of land in 2013 with a cost of =
P3.8 million, of which,
=
P1.9 million has been paid as of December 31, 2013. The revalued amount of P
=164.9 million
in 2013 and =
P153.5 million in 2012 is based on the valuation conducted by independent
appraisal companies as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The appraisal
companies used the market data or sales comparison approach where the fair market values
are determined by referring to the extent, character and utility, and sales and holding prices of
similar land, significantly adjusted for dissimilarities in the nature, location or condition of the
specific properties.
The fair values of these parcels of land are determined using Level 3 valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(see Note 22).
Significant unobservable input
Price per square meter

Range
=500 - P
P
=18,800

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated price per square meter in isolation would
result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value.
The revaluation increment, net of deferred income tax liability, of =
P110.0 million and
=
P103.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in the equity
section of the statements of financial position (see Note 18).
9. Investment Properties

Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balances
Depreciation (Note 15)
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balances
Depreciation (Note 15)
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Land
=43,162,500
P

2013
Building and
Other Property
=80,381,524
P

Total
=123,544,024
P




=43,162,500
P

58,388,563
8,043,236
66,431,799
=13,949,725
P

58,388,563
8,043,236
66,431,799
=57,112,225
P

Land
=
P43,162,500

2012
Building and
Other Property
=
P80,381,524

Total
=
P123,544,024




=
P43,162,500

50,319,911
8,068,652
58,388,563
=
P21,992,961

50,319,911
8,068,652
58,388,563
=
P65,155,461
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Investment properties are leased to employees and third parties. The total fair value of investment
properties amounted to P
=156.9 million as of December 31, 2013 and =
P157.6 million as of
December 31, 2012, as determined by an independent appraisal company. The fair values of these
investment properties were determined using Level 3 valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable (see Note 22).
The appraiser used the market data or sales comparison approach in determining the fair value of
the land. The valuation was made on the basis of the market value determined by referring to the
extent, character and utility, and sales and holding prices of similar properties, significantly
adjusted for dissimilarities in the nature, location or condition of the specific properties.
The fair value of building and other property, which represent reproduction cost less depreciation,
was arrived at by the appraiser using the cost approach. This method determines the fair value of
the building and other property by estimating the cost to create the same structure with the same
design and using similar construction materials.
The highest and best use of investment properties, as determined by the appraiser, is a mixed
commercial and residential utility, which is similar to their current use.
Rental income generated from these investment properties amounted to =
P9.0 million, =
P8.9 million
and =
P9.1 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Related direct operating expenses
amounted to =
P8.6 million, =
P11.3 million, and P
=9.0 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

10. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Companys intangible assets and goodwill pertain to a radio station acquired in 2008 at a cost
of =
P229.6 million, inclusive of VAT and net of withholding tax. The excess of acquisition cost
over the adjusted fair values of the identifiable assets amounting to =
P38.0 million was recognized
as goodwill.
The net book values of the intangible assets as of December 31 follows:

Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning balances
Amortization (Note 15)
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning balances
Amortization (Note 15)
Ending balances
Net Book Values

Frequency
P
=153,594,927

2013
Intellectual
Property Rights
P
=5,810,867

Total
P
=159,405,794

50,213,731
11,814,996
62,028,727
P
=91,566,200

5,810,867

5,810,867
P
=

56,024,598
11,814,996
67,839,594
P
=91,566,200

Frequency
=
P153,594,927

2012
Intellectual
Property Rights
=
P5,810,867

Total
=
P159,405,794

38,398,735
11,814,996
50,213,731
=
P103,381,196

5,810,867

5,810,867
=
P

44,209,602
11,814,996
56,024,598
=
P103,381,196
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Impairment Testing of Goodwill
The Company performs its annual impairment test every December of each year. The
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit determined based on value-in-use, is compared to
its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the cashgenerating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
The cash flow projections are based on a five-year financial planning period and are discounted
using the weighted average cost of capital. As a result of this analysis, management has
determined that there was no impairment loss in 2013, 2012 and 2011 since the value-in-use
exceeds the carrying value of the identifiable assets of the cash-generating unit.
Key Assumptions
The following are the key assumptions used in managements analysis:
Discount rate
Expected growth rate

2013
12.43%
7.62%

2012
12.35%
3.46%

2011
11.88%
1.80%

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
Management assesses that an increase or decrease in the discount rate by 1% point in isolation
would not cause the carrying value of identifiable assets to exceed its recoverable amount.

11. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Trade
Accrued expenses (Notes 12 and 17)
Output tax and others

2013
P
=39,480,465
80,826,281
86,674,458
P
=206,981,204

2012
=27,767,884
P
71,954,630
69,823,144
=169,545,658
P

Trade payables and accrued expenses consist of amounts due to suppliers and service providers
and are usually payable within 30 days.
Other payables consist of advances from sponsors, withholding taxes payable and dues to various
government agencies.

12. Related Party Transactions
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among
entities which are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management
personnel, directors or stockholders. Key management personnel, including directors and officers
of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated
with these individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal
form.
Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arms length prices or on terms similar to
those offered to non-related entities in an economically comparable market.
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In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with the following related parties:
x Elizalde Holding Corporation (EHC), an entity under common control;
x Cebu Broadcasting Company (CBC), an entity under common control;
x Pacific Broadcasting System, Inc. (PBSI), an entity under common control;
x Philippine Broadcasting Corporation (PBC), an entity under common control; and,
x Affiliated service companies.
The summary of transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are presented below:

Related Party/Nature
Entities under common
control:
EHC
Advances
Dividends
CBC
Advances
Program costs
Dividends
Lease
PBC
Advances
Program costs
Dividends
Lease
PBSI
Advances
Program costs
Lease
Star Parks Corporation
Lease
Affiliated service companies
Service fees
Others:
Officers
Advances

Key management personnel
Salaries, wages and
retirement
benefits

2013
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

2012
Outstanding
Transactions
Receivable
during the
(Payable)
Year

Terms and conditions

P
= 154,835,027

P
= 119,320,489

=
P

(P
=6,471,524)

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Payable January 31, 2014

53,983,034

(53,983,034)

53,983,034



5,410,025

40,459,800

9,491,706



167,896,568



138,979,511



9,000,000

(9,000,000)

9,000,000



90,000







3,864,175

16,368,935

4,763,336



16,062,314



30,192,361



900,000

(900,000)

900,000



90,000







1,857,658

13,430,977

3,514,724



57,992,378



50,081,245



90,000







393,434







Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates

187,807,350

(21,218,297)

123,199,125



Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates

140,481

5,451,343

827,900

5,591,824

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
and no impairment

10,792,436



8,304,085



Payable monthly and
upon retirement

Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Payable on
January 31, 2014
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Payable on
January 31, 2014
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates
Unsecured, interest-free
with no definite call dates

The Companys significant related party transactions are as follows:
a. The Company and several affiliated broadcasting companies, which are owned and managed
by certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the Company, entered into marketing
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agreements, whereby the affiliated broadcasting companies designated the Company as their
sole marketing outfit for the sales, promotion, and marketing of the radio commercial airtime
of all radio broadcast stations of these affiliated broadcasting companies. The original
marketing agreement, which was effective for a period of five years from January 1, 1998, has
been renewed annually, thereafter.
Under the marketing agreements, the Company shall remit to the affiliated broadcasting
companies a certain percentage of the annual revenue from the sale of the commercial time of
the radio broadcast stations after agency commission. Total fees included under Program
costs presented as part of Costs of services in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to =
P244.0 million in 2013, =
P219.3 million in 2012 and =
P203.7 million in 2011. The
Company also bills the affiliated broadcasting companies for their share in the expenses for
operating the radio broadcast stations (see Note 15).
b. In 2002, the Hating Kapatid system (the System) was devised to change the way the
Company was handling the operations of the radio stations as well as its marketing,
engineering, administrative, and financial functions (support functions). Under the System,
the operations of each radio station and support functions were outsourced to service
companies managed and operated by former station managers and officers of the Company
(affiliated service companies). As such, substantially all employees of the Company were
separated. As approved by the BOD, the Company shall provide financial support to certain
radio stations through advances as well as payment of certain operating expenses of the said
radio stations until these radio stations can financially sustain their operations.
As a result of the System, the Company entered into service agreements with affiliated service
companies, which are owned and managed by certain stockholders and/or members of the
BOD of the Company. These affiliated service companies provide production and creative
services, promotions, accounting, personnel, collection, procurement, engineering, and other
related services. The Company pays a certain percentage of collection as service fee. Total
service fees amounted to =
P187.8 million in 2013, =
P123.1 million in 2012 and =
P171.3 million
in 2011 which is shown as part of Cost of services in the statements of comprehensive
income. The outstanding payables related to these transactions amounted to =
P21.2 million and
=
P22.9 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are shown as part of the
Accounts payable and accrued expenses account in the statements of financial position.
In October 2011, the service agreement between the Company and DZRH was cancelled.
This resulted in the transfer of DZRH employees to the Company. The Company assumed
accrued retirement benefits to these transferred employees totaling P
=38.2 million. This
amount includes =
P12.7 million representing the separation costs previously accrued under
Accrued expenses account prior to the start of the implementation of the System
(see Note 17).
c. On April 1, 2014, CBC, PBC and PBSI (collectively referred to herein as the Networks), the
Company and EHC, entered into a Memorandum of Agreement confirming the agreement
among the parties to the net settlement of the respective receivables and payables as of
December 31, 2013, resulting in the Company having a total receivable of =
P125.7 million
from the other parties.
d. The Company grants and obtains short-term interest-free advances to and from its affiliates,
which are owned and managed by certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the
Company.
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e. The short-term employee benefits and retirement benefits cost of key management personnel
amounted to =
P10.8 million, =
P8.3 million, and P
=7.0 million, in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

13. Capital Stock
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 authorized common
shares with par value of =
P1.00 per share, of which 402,803,777 shares have been issued. Total
number of equity shareholders as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is 606 and 615, respectively.
On October 19, 1976, the stockholders approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of the
Company from =
P1.5 million, divided into 1.5 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each to
=
P5.0 million, divided into 5.0 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each. On the same date, the
stockholders approved the declaration of 50% stock dividends payable to stockholders of record as
of October 30, 1976.
In 1978, the stockholders reduced the proposed increase to =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million
shares with par value of P
=1.00 each, and approved the payment of the 50% stock dividend to
stockholders of record as of October 30, 1976. The increase in authorized capital stock was
approved by the Philippine SEC on April 28, 1978.
The BOD and stockholders approved on January 29, 1997 and February 26, 1997, respectively, the
increase in the Companys authorized capital stock from =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million
shares with par value of P
=1.00 each to =
P1.0 billion, divided into 1.0 billion shares with the same
par value.
14. Retained Earnings
On December 16, 2013, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P72.5 million or =
P0.18
per share to stockholders on record as of January 10, 2014 payable on January 31, 2014.
On November 19, 2012, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P72.5 million or
=
P0.18 per share to stockholders on record as of December 20, 2012 payable on December 29,
2012.
On September 30, 2011, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P120.8 million or =
P0.30
per share to stockholders on record as of October 5, 2011 payable on October 31, 2011.
The Companys retained earnings are not available for declaration as dividends to the extent of the
cost of treasury stock and unrealized gains. As of December 31, 2013, the Companys retained
earnings available for dividend declaration amounted to =
P149.8 million.
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15. Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Cost of services:

Program costs (Notes 12 and 19)
Service fees (Note 12)
Personnel expenses (Notes 12 and 16)
Depreciation (Note 8)
Replacement parts

2013
P
=307,071,087
187,807,350
33,735,656
15,281,275
5,421,889
P
=549,317,257

2012
=308,395,890
P
123,119,125
33,039,032
10,960,792
6,039,488
=481,554,327
P

2011
=290,644,665
P
171,270,963
20,624,510
14,215,499
4,463,103
=501,218,740
P

2013
P
=75,680,195

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=57,220,965
P

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=61,175,462
P

32,400,011
24,641,944
24,589,034
14,692,247
12,971,887
12,882,860
7,721,396
5,638,410
5,405,502
5,384,911
4,696,408
3,892,224

31,170,949
18,608,703
21,893,293
10,104,029
11,324,491
8,021,358
5,175,363
5,166,398
1,530,263
4,761,664
2,945,436
1,674,832

31,856,472
18,268,100
16,966,432
5,783,025
7,672,647
2,710,584
13,417,846
1,314,988
1,353,510
3,724,312
988,380
2,742,991

2,249,355

2,590,359

2,250,484


12,480,161
P
=245,326,545

130,715
13,475,362
=195,794,180
P

2,908,755
5,038,899
=178,172,887
P

Operating expenses:

Personnel expenses (Notes 12 and 16)
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 8, 9 and 10)
Agency commission and discounts
Communication, light and water
Repairs
Travel and transportation
Rent (Note 19)
Advertising and promotions
Replacement parts
Professional fees
Taxes and licenses
Outside services
Commissions
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation
Provision for doubtful accounts
(Note 6)
Others

16. Personnel Expenses

Salaries, wages and bonuses
Retirement benefits cost (Note 17)
Other short-term employee benefits

2013
P
=87,011,562
8,851,311
13,552,978
P
=109,415,851

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=70,936,319
P
7,367,251
11,956,427
=90,259,997
P

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=46,323,399
P
27,164,978
8,311,595
=81,799,972
P
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17. Retirement Benefits and Separation Costs
Separation Costs under the Hating Kapatid System
Substantially all employees of the Company were separated in 2002 upon implementation of the
System. However, most of the said personnel were employed by the affiliated service companies.
The separated employees expressly agreed in writing to receive their separation pay from the
Company only after their final/actual separation/resignation from the affiliated service companies.
Separation costs of =
P38.2 million have been recognized in 2002 in addition to the amount
previously accrued.
As discussed in Note 12, the agreement with DZRH under the System was cancelled in 2011 and
the employees of DZRH were transferred to the Company. As a result, separation costs relating to
the employees transferred from DZRH amounting to P
=12.7 million were reclassified as retirement
benefits and included under Accrued retirement benefits in the statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2011.
The remaining unpaid balance of the separation costs of P
=27.7 million and P
=28.1 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are included in the Accounts payable and accrued
expenses account in the statements of financial position.
Retirement Benefits
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of its
remaining employees. The latest actuarial valuation report is as of December 31, 2013.
The components of retirement benefits cost (income) are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Past service costs of employees
transferred from an
affiliate (Note 12)
Retirement benefits cost charged to
profit or loss
Remeasurement loss (gain) on accrued
retirement benefits*

2013
P
=6,460,968
2,390,343

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=4,935,922
P
2,431,329

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=1,497,413
P
149,444





25,518,121

8,851,311

7,367,251

27,164,978

(1,826,704)
P5,540,547
=

2,438,865
=29,603,843
P

(14,132,058)
(P
=5,280,747)

* Remeasurement loss on accrued retirement benefits were closed to retained earnings at transition date.
Subsequent remeasurements are recognized in OCI (see Note 2).

Deferred income tax effect of remeasurements amounted to =
P4.2 million, P
=0.5 million and
=
P0.7 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 18).
Remeasurements on accrued retirement benefits recognized in OCI consist of actuarial gains
(losses) on:

Present value of benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2013
P
=9,110,535
5,021,523
P
=14,132,058

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=1,323,199
P
503,505
=1,826,704
P

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
(P
=3,190,802)
751,937
(P
=2,438,865)
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The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

Present value of benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Accrued retirement benefits

2013
P
=79,146,775
49,062,123
P
=30,084,652

December 31,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=80,940,273
P
35,924,381
=45,015,892
P

January 1,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=73,033,198
P
31,684,064
=41,349,134
P

December 31,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=41,349,134
P
5,540,547
(1,873,789)


=45,015,892
P

January 1,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=2,027,732
P
29,603,843
(2,944,525)

12,662,084
=41,349,134
P

Movements in the accrued retirement benefits follow:

At beginning of year
Retirement benefits cost (income)
Contributions
Benefits paid
Reclassification (Note 12)
At end of year

2013
P
=45,015,892
(5,280,747)
(6,208,634)
(3,441,859)

P
=30,084,652

The changes in present value of the retirement obligation are as follows:

At beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in assumptions
Benefits paid
Past service costs of employees
transferred from an affiliate
(Note 12)
Reclassification (Note 12)
At end of year

2013
P
=80,940,273
6,460,968
4,297,928
(12,759,194)
3,648,659
(3,441,859)



P
=79,146,775

December 31,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=73,033,198
P
4,935,922
4,294,352

January 1,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=28,094,233
P
1,497,413
2,070,545

(5,507,244)
4,184,045


(4,171,492)
7,362,294




=80,940,273
P

25,518,121
12,662,084
=73,033,198
P

*SGVFS004016*

- 36 -

The changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

At beginning of year
Interest income
Contributions
Actuarial gain on plan assets
At end of year

2013
P
=35,924,381
1,907,585
6,208,634
5,021,523
P
=49,062,123

Actual return on plan assets

P
=6,929,108

December 31,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=31,684,064
P
1,863,023
1,873,789
503,505
=35,924,381
P
=
P2,366,528

January 1,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=26,066,501
P
1,921,101
2,944,525
751,937
=31,684,064
P
=
P2,673,038

The Companys retirement fund (the Fund) is administered by a trustee bank. The management
and the trustee bank review the performance of the Fund on a regular basis and assess whether the
Fund will achieve an investment return which, together with contributions will be sufficient to pay
retirement benefits when they fall due.
The Fund consists of the following assets and investments:
x
x
x
x

Cash and cash equivalents, which include regular savings and time deposits earning interest at
their respective bank deposit rates
Investments in debt securities, consisting of various corporate bonds which earn interest
ranging from 4.38% to 6.27% and have remaining maturities of four to 10 years
Investments in government securities, which include retail treasury bonds and fixed treasury
notes that bear interest ranging from 4.16% to 9.00% and will mature in two to 22 years, and
Investment in unsecured debt security which pertain to an unsecured subordinated note from a
financing company which earn interest at 6.75% and will mature in April 2016.

The categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets as of
December 31 are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in government securities:
Fixed treasury notes
Retail treasury bonds
Investments in debt securities:
Banks
Utilities
Holding firm
Property
Telecommunications
Investment in unsecured debt security
Receivables

2013
17.23%

2012
6.62%

35.42%
22.32%

46.74%
26.63%

8.15%
7.13%
4.08%
2.05%
2.04%
1.02%
0.56%
100.00%

15.09%


2.80%

1.38%
0.74%
100.00%
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The assumptions used to determine retirement benefits of the Company as of January 1 are as
follows:
2013
5.31%
10.00%

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

2012
5.88%
10.00%

2011
7.37%
10.00%

As of December 31, 2013, the discount rate and salary increase rate are 4.84% and 10.00%,
respectively.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the reasonably possible change of
each significant actuarial assumption on the retirement obligation as of December 31, 2013
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Discount rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2
Salary increase rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2

Increase
(decrease)

Effect in retirement
benefit obligation

1.00%
(1.00%)

(P
=7,590,064)
9,685,163

(2.50%)
(5.00%)

(15,050,969)
(21,274,693)

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of
December 31, 2013:
Within one year
More than one year to five years
More than five years to 10 years
More than 10 years to 15 years
More than 15 years to 20 years
More than 20 years

=31,930,927
P
2,233,536
25,825,991
20,625,295
43,711,726
937,328,503

The Company expects to contribute =
P6.0 million in 2014.

18. Income Taxes
a. The provision for income tax consists of:

Regular corporate income tax
Final tax
Deferred

2013
P
=42,116,956
109,779
209,800
P
=42,436,535

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=40,246,814
P
186,916
(1,209,002)
=39,224,728
P

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=34,211,753
P
215,630
(8,095,694)
=26,331,689
P
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b. The components of the Companys net deferred income tax liabilities consist of the tax effects
of the following:
December 31,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)

January 1,
2012
(As restated,
Note 2)

=16,346,244
P
444,606

=
P17,544,587
444,606

=
P17,505,372
452,599

8,100,891
683,067
25,574,808

12,007,113

29,996,306

11,366,494
10,850
29,335,315

47,134,382
27,919
47,162,301
=21,587,493
P

44,163,542

44,163,542
=
P14,167,236

34,780,652

34,780,652
=
P5,445,337

2013
Deferred income tax assets on:
Allowances for:
Doubtful accounts
Inventory obsolescence
Accrued retirement benefits and
unamortized contribution to
past service cost
Accrued rent
Deferred income tax liabilities on:
Revaluation increment on land
(Note 8)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Deferred income tax liabilities - net

c. The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate to provision for income tax
as shown in profit or loss follows:

Statutory income tax
Additions to (reductions in)
income tax resulting from:
Interest income subjected to
final tax at a lower rate
Impairment losses on AFS
financial assets
Nondeductible expenses
Provision for income tax

2013
P
=42,491,766

2012
(As restated,
Note 2)
=37,995,603
P

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=26,281,126
P

(55,231)

(93,559)

(86,020)



P
= 42,436,535


1,322,684
=39,224,728
P

136,583

=26,331,689
P

19. Lease Commitments
a. The Company leases satellite communications capacity for the performance of its
broadcasting services called the Transponder Lease, which considers certain space segment
capacity and transponder power. The lease agreement is for a period of five years from
November 1, 2007 and was renewed for another five years commencing on November 1,
2012. Rent expense on this lease agreement amounted to =
P5.1 million, =
P4.8 million and
=
P4.7 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, included under Program costs presented
as part of Costs of services in the statements of comprehensive income.
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Future minimum lease payments as of December 31 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

2013
P
=5,087,667
14,415,057
P
=19,502,724

2012
P4,704,330
=
18,033,265
=22,737,595
P

b. The Company renewed its lease agreement with a related party for its office space and
transmitter site for a period of 11 years commencing from January 1, 2013. The annual rent
expense for the first year amounted to =
P3.3 million, subject to annual escalation of 10%. Rent
expense on this lease agreement amounted to =
P5.6 million in 2013.
Future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

P3,658,179
=
20,916,412
40,284,608
=64,859,199
P

20. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Companys principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to fund the Companys operations. The other financial
assets and financial liabilities arising directly from its operations are receivables, due to/from
affiliates, AFS financial assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, talent fees and
commissions payable and dividends payable.
The main risks arising from the Companys financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks.
Credit Risk
Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of control and
monitoring procedures. It is the Companys policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit
terms are subjected to credit verification procedures. Receivables and due from affiliates balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Companys exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to its receivables as
low, as its customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets.
With respect to credit risk arising from the Companys cash and cash equivalents, the Companys
exposure arises from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments. The Company deals only with financial institutions duly
evaluated and approved by the BOD. The Company avoids concentrations of credit risk on its
liquid assets as these are spread over several financial institutions.
The maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is equal
to the carrying values of the financial assets. The Company does not hold collaterals as security.
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Credit quality of financial assets
The tables below summarize the credit quality of the Companys financial assets as of
December 31:
2013
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

Past due but
not impaired

Past due
and impaired

Total

P
= 65,201,372
29,093,584

P
=


P
=


P
=


P
= 65,201,372
29,093,584

22,719,853
6,627,058
6,929,423
125,697,167

143,566,382
1,125,276
946,721


126,638,544
9,543,831
661,844


53,252,177
379,906
855,398


346,176,956
17,676,071
9,393,386
125,697,167

120,000

P
= 256,388,457


25,544,635
P
= 171,183,014



P
= 136,844,219



P
= 54,487,481

120,000
25,544,635
P
= 618,903,171

Past due but
not impaired

Past due
and impaired

Total

2012
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

=
P115,299,975
25,629,166

=
P


=
P


=
P


=
P115,299,975
25,629,166

73,264,367
11,583,265
6,288,797

78,309,501
1,125,276
956,283

127,389,026
9,543,831
1,323,688

56,058,646
379,906
2,043,404

335,021,540
22,632,278
10,612,172

90,000

=
P232,155,570


25,544,635
=
P105,935,695



=
P138,256,545



=
P58,481,956

90,000
25,544,635
=
P534,829,766

Financial assets classified as high grade are those cash in banks and short-term investments
transacted with reputable local banks and receivables and due from affiliates with no history of
default on the agreed contract terms. Financial instruments classified as standard grade are
those financial assets with little history of default on the agreed terms of the contract. A financial
asset is considered past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually
due. Past due but not impaired financial assets are items with history of frequent default.
Nevertheless, the amounts due are still collectible. Lastly, Past due and impaired items are
those that are long outstanding and have been specifically identified and collectively provided
with allowance for probable losses.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The tables below summarize the aging analysis of past due but not impaired financial assets as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Loans and receivables:
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

<30 Days

31-60
Days

61-90
Days

2013
91-120
Days

Over 120
Days

Total

P
=29,943,472
721,618

P
=30,665,090

P
=19,760,356
119,409

P
=19,879,765

P
=12,174,039
127,639

P
=12,301,678

P
=22,032,230
3,092,059

P
=25,124,289

P
=42,728,447
5,483,106
661,844
P
=48,873,397

P
=126,638,544
9,543,831
661,844
P
=136,844,219
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Loans and receivables:
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

<30 Days

31-60
Days

61-90
Days

2012
91-120
Days

Over 120
Days

Total

=
P29,795,366
721,618

=
P30,516,984

=
P15,859,855
119,409

=
P15,979,264

=
P10,746,413
127,639

=
P10,874,052

=
P38,996,108
3,092,059

=
P42,088,167

=
P31,991,284
5,483,106
1,323,688
=
P38,798,078

=
P127,389,026
9,543,831
1,323,688
=
P138,256,545

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when obligations are not met when they fall due. It is the Companys
objective to finance capital expenditures, services, and maturing obligations as scheduled. To
cover the Companys financing requirements and at the same time, manage its liquidity risk, the
Company uses internally generated funds and proceeds from debt. Projected and actual cash flow
information are regularly evaluated and funding sources are continuously assessed.
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Companys financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On demand
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions
payable

2013
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

Total

P
=51,913,566


P
=63,653,668
12,853,693

P
=52,152,895


P
=167,720,129
12,853,693


P
=51,913,566

27,631,537
P
=104,138,898

11,842,088
P
=63,994,983

39,473,625
P
=220,047,447

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 39,261,075 as of December 31, 2013.

On demand
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Due to affiliates
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions
payable

2012
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

Total

=
P51,398,290
6,471,524
10,391,998

=
P45,412,041



=
P35,851,611



=
P132,661,942
6,471,524
10,391,998


=
P68,261,812

25,078,640
=
P70,490,681

10,747,989
=
P46,599,600

35,826,629
=
P185,352,093

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 36,883,716 as of December 31, 2012.
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The following tables show the profile of financial assets used by the Company to manage its
liquidity risk:
2013

Cash in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates

On
Demand
P
=65,201,372

65,201,372

Less than
3 Months
P
=
29,093,584
29,093,584

3 to 12
Months
P
=



Total
P
=65,201,372
29,093,584
94,294,956

166,286,235
7,752,334
7,876,144
125,697,167
307,611,880
P
=372,813,252

61,877,867
968,666


62,846,533
P
=91,940,117

64,760,677
8,575,165
661,844

73,997,686
P
=73,997,686

292,924,779
17,296,165
8,537,988
125,697,167
444,456,099
P
=538,751,055

On
Demand
=
P115,299,975

115,299,975

Less than
3 Months
=
P
25,629,166
25,629,166

3 to 12
Months
=
P



Total
=
P115,299,975
25,629,166
140,929,141

151,573,868
12,708,541
7,245,080
171,527,489
=
P286,827,464

56,401,634
968,666

57,370,300
=
P82,999,466

70,987,392
8,575,165
1,323,688
80,886,245
=
P80,886,245

278,962,894
22,252,372
8,568,768
309,784,034
=
P450,713,175

2012

Cash in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

Equity Price Risk
The Companys exposure to the risk of changes in equity price relates primarily to its quoted AFS
financial asset. Management believes that the Companys exposure to equity price risk is minimal
since the balance of quoted AFS financial asset is not material (see Note 7).
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Companys capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012.
The Company monitors its use of capital using debt to equity ratio (total liabilities/total equity)
which is 45.96% and 44.80% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the Companys capital structure as of December 31:

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock

2013
P
=402,803,777
79,354
184,599,369
(120,787)
P
=587,361,713

2011
(As restated,
Note 2)
=402,803,777
P
79,354
157,879,621
(120,787)
=560,641,965
P

21. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The carrying value and estimated fair value of all the financial instruments are equal as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
AFS financial assets
The fair value of the quoted shares of stock as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is based on quoted
market price (Level 1). Unquoted shares of stock amounting to =
P25.5 million as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, are carried and presented at cost since as allowed by PFRS, the fair values of such
investments cannot be reliably determined.
Other financial assets and financial liabilities
Due to the short-term nature of other financial assets and financial liabilities, the fair value of cash
in banks, short-term investments, receivables, due to/from affiliates, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, dividends payable, and talent fees and commissions payable approximate the carrying
value as of the reporting date.
Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The Company offsets its receivable and payable to its affiliates as the Company intends to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The gross amounts of
the due from and due to its affiliates and the amounts disclosed in the statement of financial
position as of December 31 are as follows:

Receivable
Payable
Due from (to) affiliates

2013
P
=189,580,201
(63,883,034)
P
=125,697,167

2012
=
P
(6,471,524)
(P
=6,471,524)
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22. Fair Value Measurement
The following table provides the fair value hierarchy of the Companys assets measured at fair
value and for which fair values are disclosed as of December 31, 2013:

Total
Financial assets measured at
fair value AFS financial assets Quoted equity securities
Assets measured at fair value:
Land at revalued amount
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment properties:
Land
Building and other property

Fair value measurement using
Significant
observable
Quoted prices in
inputs
active markets
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

=
P120,000

=
P120,000

=
P

=
P

167,180,700





167,180,700

67,792,600
89,089,500







67,792,600
89,089,500

There were no transfers between the different hierarchy levels in 2013 and 2012.

23. Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common
shares during each year. Diluted EPS is computed as if the potential common share or instrument
that may entitle the holder to common share were exercised as of the beginning of the year. When
there are no potential common shares or other instruments that may entitle the holder to common
shares, diluted EPS, is the same as the basic EPS.
There are no dilutive financial instruments in 2013 and 2012, hence, diluted EPS is the same as the
basic EPS.

24. Other Matters
The Company is and may become a defendant/respondent in various cases and assessments which
are pending in the courts or under protest. Management and its legal counsels believe that the
liability, if any, that may result from the outcome of these cases and investigation will not
materially affect its financial position and results of operations.
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25. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010
In compliance with Bureau of Internal Revenue Regulations 15-2010 issued on November 25,
2010, mandating all taxpayers to disclose information on taxes and license fees paid and accrued
during the taxable year, summarized below are the taxes paid and accrued by the Company in
2013.
a. Output VAT declared by the Company amounted to =
P108,891,580 based on receipts of
=
P907,429,837. Outstanding net output tax payable amounted to =
P35,010,828 as of
December 31, 2013.
The Companys revenue on which output VAT is declared, is based on collections, hence,
may not be the same as the amounts accrued in the statement of comprehensive income.
b. Movements in input VAT are as follows:
Balance, January 1
Current year payments for capital goods
subject to amortization
Total available input VAT during the period
Claims for tax credit and other adjustments
Balance, December 31

=4,949,252
P
65,250,249
70,199,501
(64,930,675)
=
P5,268,826

c. Taxes and licenses paid by the Company are as follows:
Business permits
NTC permits and fees
Real property taxes
Others

=2,014,573
P
2,041,056
877,838
451,444
=5,384,911
P

d. Withholding taxes paid and accrued by the Company are as follows:

Expanded withholding tax
Withholding tax on compensation
and benefits
Final withholding taxes

Paid
=17,146,885
P

Accrued
=1,831,146
P

Total
=18,978,031
P

6,156,281
5,784,372

1,179,398
378,903

7,335,679
6,163,275
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